

Reregistration Eligibility Decision for Chloroneb

Reregistration Eligibility Decision (RED) Document for Chloroneb

List A

Case No. 0007

Approved by:	I	Date:
	Debra Edwards, Ph. D.	Month Day, 2005
	Director	
	Special Review and Reregi	stration Division

Table of Contents

Chloroneb Reregistration Eligibility Decision Team	i
Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations	. ii
Abstract	. iv
I. Introduction	. 1
II. Chemical Overview	. 2
III. Summary of Chloroneb Risk Assessment	. 4
A. Human Health Risk Assessment	. 5
1. Hazard Profile	. 5
2. Dietary Exposure and Risk from Food and Water	7
a. Acute Dietary (Food and Water)	7
b. Chronic Dietary (Food and Water)	. 7
c. Drinking Water Estimates	8
3. Residential Exposure and Risk	9
a. Residential Postapplication Exposure and Risk	9
4. Aggregate Exposure and Risk	10
5. Occupational Exposure and Risk	11
6. Occupational Incidents Reports	14
B. Environmental Risk Assessment	
Environmental Fate and Transport Properties	
Ecological Risk Assessment	15
3. Risks to Aquatic Animals	15
4. Risks to Terrestrial Animals	15
5. Risks to Plants	16
6. Endangered Species	16
IV. Risk Management, Reregistration Eligibility, and Tolerance Reassessment Decision	17
A. Determination of Reregistration Eligibility	17
B. Public Comments and Responses.	18
C. Regulatory Position	18
1. Food Quality Protection Act Findings	18
a. "Risk Cup" Determination	18
b. Determination of Safety to U.S. Population	19
(Including Infants and Children)	
c. Endocrine Disrupter Effects	19
d. Cumulative Risks	20
2. Tolerance Reassessment Summary	20
D. Regulatory Rationale	22
1. Human Health Risk Management	22
a. Aggregate Risk Mitigation	22
1) Short-/Intermediate Term Aggregate Risk Mitigation	22
b. Occupational Risk Mitigation	23

1) Handler Exposure	3
2) Post-application Risk Mitigation	4
2. Environmental Risk Mitigation	
3. Endangered Species Considerations	25
4. Spray Drift Management	26
V. What Registrants Need to Do	
A. Manufacturing-Use Products	
1. Additional Generic Data Requirements	28
2. Labeling for Technical and Manufacturing End-Use Products	29
B. End-Use Products	29
Additional Product-Specific Data Requirements	29
2. Labeling Requirements for End-Use Products	30
a. Label Changes Summary Table	30
C. Existing Stocks	30
VI. Appendices	38
A. Table of Use Patterns for Chloroneb	39
B. Generic Data Requirements and Studies Used to Make the Reregistration Decision	53
C. Technical Supports Documents	61
D. Bibliography	63
E. Generic Data Call-in	96
F. Product Specific Data Call-In	10
G. EPA's Batching of Chloroneb Products for Meeting Acute Toxicity	
Data Requirements for reregistration	20
H. List of Registrants Sent Data Call-Ins	23
I. List of Available Related Documents and Electronically Available Forms	24

Chloroneb Reregistration Eligibility Decision Team

Office of Pesticide Programs:

Biological and Economic Analysis Assessment

Richard Michell TJ Wyatt Alan Halvorson

Environmental Fate and Effects Risk Assessment

RDavid Jones Melissa Panger

Health Effects Risk Assessment

Bonnie Cropp-Kohlligian Matthew Crowley William Dykstra Thurston Morton

Registration Support

Mary Waller

Risk Management

Wilhelmena Livingston Eric Olson Bonnie Adler

Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations

AGDCI Agricultural Data Call-In

ai Active Ingredient

aPAD Acute Population Adjusted Dose

BCF Bioconcentration Factor
CFR Code of Federal Regulations
cPAD Chronic Population Adjusted Dose
CSF Confidential Statement of Formula

CSFII USDA Continuing Surveys for Food Intake by Individuals

DCI Data Call-In

DEEM Dietary Exposure Evaluation Model

DFR Dislodgeable Foliar Residue
DNT Developmental Neurotoxicity

EC Emulsifiable Concentrate Formulation
EDWC Estimated Drinking Water Concentration
EEC Estimated Environmental Concentration
EPA Environmental Protection Agency

EUP End-Use Product

FDA Food and Drug Administration

FIFRA Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act

FFDCA Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act

FOPA Food Quality Protection Act

GLN Guideline Number IR Index Reservoir

LC₅₀ Median Lethal Concentration. A statistically derived concentration of a substance that can be expected

to cause death in 50% of test animals. It is usually expressed as the weight of substance per weight or

volume of water, air or feed, e.g., mg/l, mg/kg or ppm.

LD₅₀ Median Lethal Dose. A statistically derived single dose that can be expected to cause death in 50% of

the test animals when administered by the route indicated (oral, dermal, inhalation). It is expressed as a

weight of substance per unit weight of animal, e.g., mg/kg.

LOC Level of Concern

LOAEL Lowest Observed Adverse Effect Level
MATC Maximum Acceptable Toxicant Concentration

μg/g Micrograms Per Gram μg/L Micrograms Per Liter

mg/kg/day Milligram Per Kilogram Per Day

mg/L Milligrams Per Liter
MOE Margin of Exposure

MRID Master Record Identification (number). EPA's system of recording and tracking studies submitted.

MUP Manufacturing-Use Product
NOAEL No Observed Adverse Effect Level
OPP EPA Office of Pesticide Programs

OPPTS EPA Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances

PAD Population Adjusted Dose PCA Percent Crop Area

PDP USDA Pesticide Data Program PHED Pesticide Handler's Exposure Data

PHI Preharvest Interval ppb Parts Per Billion

PPE Personal Protective Equipment

ppm Parts Per Million

PRZM/EXAMS Tier II Surface Water Computer Model

 Q_1^* The Carcinogenic Potential of a Compound, Quantified by the EPA's Cancer Risk Model

RAC Raw Agriculture Commodity
RED Reregistration Eligibility Decision

REI Restricted Entry Interval

RfD Reference Dose RQ Risk Quotient

SCI-GROW Tier I Ground Water Computer Model

SAP Science Advisory Panel

SF Safety Factor

SLC Single Layer Clothing

TGAI Technical Grade Active Ingredient
USDA United States Department of Agriculture

USGS United States Geological Survey UF Uncertainty Factor

UV Ultraviolet

WPS Worker Protection Standard

Abstract

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has concluded its reregistration eligibility decision for chloroneb and determined that the chemical is eligible for reregistration provided that: (1) current data gaps and additional data needs are addressed; (2) the risk mitigation measures outlined in this document are adopted; and (3) label amendments are made to implement these measures. EPA has also reassessed tolerances for chloroneb. The 24 tolerances for chloroneb are now considered reassessed as safe under section 408(q) of FFDCA, as amended by FQPA.

EPA has completed its review of the public comments on the chloroneb risk assessments and is issuing its risk management decision. The risk assessments are based on review of the available data base supporting the use patterns of currently registered products and additional information received. After considering the risks identified in the risk assessment, comments, and mitigation suggestions from interested parties, EPA developed its risk management decision for uses of chloroneb that pose risks of concern.

Chloroneb (1,4-dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene) is a fungicide currently registered for use on a wide variety of food crops but is primarily used for pre-plant cottonseed treatment as well as on commercial turf and ornamentals. The markets for chloroneb seed treatment uses include: sugar beets, soybeans, cotton, and beans. Treated cottonseed are used in the cotton growing states of CA, AZ, MS, LA, AR, TX and KS with lower use in AL, GA, SC, TN and NC. Uses on turf are primarily in midwestern and northeastern states as well as FL.

Confirmation that the seed treatment uses of chloroneb constitute food uses requiring tolerances (food/feed and possibly meat/milk) and reevaluation of the limited chloroneb database has led to conclusions that numerous additional toxicology and residue chemistry data are now required to support the reregistration of chloroneb. The toxicology and residue chemistry databases are not complete due primarily to unacceptable older or missing studies.

The key data that are required include: (1) the 2-generation reproduction data in the rat; (2) oncogenicity data in the mouse; and (3) combined chronic toxicity/oncogenicity data in the rat. The Agency concluded that the toxicology data base for chloroneb is not complete, since an acceptable 2-generation reproduction study is not available and therefore an FQPA 10X database uncertainty factor has been retained. In addition, the Agency is requiring other studies for the reregistration of chloroneb.

Overall Risk Summary

No acute dietary assessment was performed since an endpoint attributable to a single exposure was not identified from the available database. Chronic (non-cancer) risks from combined food and water are below the Agency's level of concern and the Agency concluded that chloroneb is unlikely to pose a dietary cancer risk. There is a potential risk from postapplication exposure (dermal and

incidental oral) in residential settings, such as recreational areas, golf courses, and home lawns resulting from entering areas previously treated with chloroneb. There is also a potential risk from occupational exposure from the application of chloroneb on both food and non-food use sites resulting from handling chloroneb products (i.e., mixer/loaders and applicators) and for occupational postapplication exposure resulting from entering areas previously treated with chloroneb. For ecological risks, there are exceedences of the level of concern (LOC) for endangered species, or no data to dismiss the concern for endangered species, in the following taxa: avian, mammal, freshwater fish and invertebrates, and estuarine/marine organisms. For avian and freshwater organisms, the risk quotients exceeded the endangered species acute LOC, and no chronic data are available. For mammals and estuarine/marine organisms, no relevant acute or chronic data are available to dismiss the concern for endangered species.

Risk Mitigation

To mitigate residential and occupational risks to chloroneb and to reduce potential exposures to wildlife, the registrant has agreed to:

- voluntarily cancel the use of chloroneb on residential lawns and turf, as well as on lawns and turf at parks and schools;
- amend its label to remove ornamentals, all other turf, bedding plants, ferns, and on-farm seed treatment from its label pending the Agency receipt, review, and acceptance of a 21-day dermal toxicology study and reevaluation of risk; and,
- voluntarily amend labeling for turf uses as follows, if the revised risk assessment based on the dermal toxicity study indicates (see above) acceptable risks:
 - restrict use on turf to golf course tees, greens, collars, aprons, and spot treatment of fairways, as well as professional athletic turf (football, baseball fields, etc.)
 - limit the number of applications on golf courses to 6 per year; 4 applications at 7 lb ai/A and 2 applications at 16 lb ai/A
 - limit maximum use per year on golf courses to 60 lb ai/acre/year
 - require a minimum retreatment interval of 14 days for golf course tees, greens, and aprons, and professional athletic fields;

 replace the wettable powder formulation with the use of water soluble packaging for commercial seed treatment, and require a closed loading system when loading/applying liquid for commercial seed treatment.

Next Steps

The Agency is issuing this Reregistration Eligibility Decision (RED) document for chloroneb as announced in a Notice of Availability published in the *Federal Register*. In the future, EPA will issue a generic Data Call-In (DCI) for additional data necessary to confirm the conclusions of this RED for the active ingredient chloroneb. EPA will also issue a product specific DCI for data necessary to complete product reregistration for products containing chloroneb.

I. Introduction

The Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) was amended in 1988 to accelerate the reregistration of products with active ingredients registered prior to November 1, 1984 and amended again by the Pesticide Registration Improvement Act of 2003 to set time frames for the issuance of Reregistration Eligibility Decisions. The Act calls for the development and submission of data to support to support the reregistration of an active ingredient, as well as a review of all submitted data to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA or the Agency). Reregistration involves a thorough review of the scientific database underlying a pesticide's registration. The purpose of the Agency's review is to reassess the potential risks arising from the currently registered uses of the pesticide; to determine the need for additional data on health and environmental effects; and to determine whether or not the pesticide meets the "no unreasonable adverse effects" criteria of FIFRA.

On August 3, 1996, the Food Quality Protection Act of 1996 (FQPA) was signed into law. This Act amends FIFRA and the Federal Food Drug and Cosmetic Act (FFDCA) to require reassessment of all existing tolerances for pesticides in food. FQPA also requires EPA to review all tolerances in effect on August 2, 1996 by August 3, 2006. In reassessing these tolerances, the Agency must consider, among other things, aggregate risks from non-occupational sources of pesticide exposure, whether there is increased susceptibility to infants and children, and the cumulative effects of pesticides with a common mechanism of toxicity. When a safety finding has been made that aggregate risks are not of concern and the Agency concludes that there is a reasonable certainty of no harm from aggregate exposure, the tolerances are considered reassessed. EPA decided that, for those chemicals that have tolerances and are undergoing reregistration, tolerance reassessment will be accomplished through the reregistration process.

As mentioned above, FQPA requires EPA to consider "available information" concerning the cumulative effects of a particular pesticide's residues and "other substances that have a common mechanism of toxicity" when considering whether to establish, modify, or revoke a tolerance. Potential cumulative effects of chemicals with a common mechanism of toxicity are considered because low-level exposures to multiple chemicals causing a common toxic effect by a common mechanism could lead to the same adverse health effect as would a higher level of exposure to any one of these individual chemicals. For information regarding EPA's efforts to determine which chemicals have a common mechanism of toxicity and to evaluate the cumulative effects of such chemicals, see the policy statements released by the EPA's Office of Pesticide Programs concerning common mechanism determinations and procedures for cumulating effects from substances found to have a common mechanism on EPA's website at http://epa.gov/pesticides/cumulative/.

Unlike other pesticides for which EPA has considered cumulative risk based on a common mechanism of toxicity, EPA has not made a common mechanism of toxicity finding for chloroneb. The Agency has found no information indicating chloroneb shares a common mechanism of toxicity with other substances. Chloroneb does not appear to produce a toxic metabolite produced by other

substances. Therefore, for the purposes of tolerance reassessment and a decision on reregistration eligibility, EPA is not assuming that chloroneb shares a common mechanism of toxicity with other compounds. In the future, if additional information suggests chloroneb shares a common mechanism of toxicity with other compounds, additional testing may be required and a cumulative assessment may be necessary.

This document presents EPA's revised human health and ecological risk assessments and its progress toward tolerance reassessment, and the reregistration eligibility decision for chloroneb. The document consists of six sections. Section I contains the regulatory framework for reregistration/tolerance reassessment. Section II provides a profile of the use and usage of the chemical. Section III gives an overview of the revised human health and environmental effects risk assessments based on data, public comments, and other information received in response to the preliminary risk assessments. Section IV presents the Agency's reregistration eligibility and risk management decisions. Section V summarizes label changes necessary to implement the risk mitigation measures outlined in Section IV. Finally, the Appendices (section VI) list related information, and supporting documents. The preliminary and revised risk assessments for chloroneb are available in the Public Docket, under docket number OPP-2004-0369 and on the Agency's web page, http://www.epa.gov/edockets.

II. Chemical Overview

Chloroneb (1,4-dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene) is a fungicide currently registered for use on a wide variety of food crops but is primarily used for pre-plant cottonseed treatment as well as on commercial turf and ornamentals. The markets for chloroneb seed treatment uses include: sugar beets, soybeans, cotton, and beans. Treated cottonseed are used in the cotton growing states of CA, AZ, MS, LA, AR, TX and KS with lower use in AL, GA, SC, TN and NC. Turf uses are primarily in midwestern and northeastern states as well as FL for use on golf courses.

Tables 1 and 2 provide an overview of chloroneb's structure and properties.

Table 1. Chloroneb	Nomenclature.
Chemical structure	CI H_3C CI CI
Common name	Chloroneb
Molecular Formula	$C_8H_8Cl_2O_2$
Molecular Weight	207.06

Table 1. Chloroneb	Nomenclature.
IUPAC name	1,4-dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene
CAS name	1,4-dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene
CAS#	2675-77-6
PC Code	027301

Table 2. Physicochemical Properties of Chloroneb.				
Parameter	Value			
Melting point/range	128-130 C			
рН	N/A; chloroneb is not dispersible in water			
Density	0.8814 g/mL ± 2.11% (temperature not specified)			
Water solubility, at 20 °C	2.09 x 10 ⁻² g/L			
Solvent solubility, at 20 °C	Chloroform Benzene Acetone Ethanol Methanol Petroleum ether	284 g/L 189 g/L 140 g/L 15.9 g/L 15.5 g/L 14.6 g/L		
Vapor pressure, at 25 °C	3 x 10 ⁻³ mm Hg (PAI)			
Dissociation constant, pK _a	N/A; chloroneb is insoluble in aqueous solutions			
Octanol/water partition coefficient, Log(K _{OW}), at 24.5 °C	2.99			
UV/visible absorption	No Data Available			

Formulations

Chloroneb products include flowable concentrate, granular, and wettable powder.

Application Rate

• The maximum rates for seed treatment uses are: 3.0 oz ai/hundred weight of seed (cwt) (or 0.19 lb ai/per cwt) for beans, lupine, and soybeans; 3.9 oz ai/cwt of seed (or 2.4 lb. ai/cwt) for sugar beets; and 7.8 oz ai/cwt of seed (or 0.49 lb ai/cwt) for cottonseed. The maximum foliar use rates on turf grasses are 15.9 lb ai/A for the wettable powder and 16.2 lb ai/A for the granular formulations. Chloroneb formulated as wettable powder, and flowable concentrate is registered for use on ornamental plants at a maximum foliar use rate of 3.9 lb ai/A. Chloroneb is generally applied as a single application, but may be used as a follow-up application, depending on factors such as disease pressure (outbreak) and weather.

Methods of Application

• Chloroneb can be applied as a seed treatment, foliar spray, chemigation, ground spray, drip, and soil drench.

Use Summary

As Table 3 illustrates below, available data do not suggest chloroneb is a widely used pesticide.

Table 3: Estimated Usage of Chloroneb				
Crop	Percent Crop Treated	Basis		
Cotton ^a	2%	CA treated 1-2% of cotton in 2002 and less in 2001. No usage on cotton crop indicated in USDA/NASS 1997 - 2001 & 2003 nor in EPA propriety data 1995 - 2003. (CA grows 12% of US cotton.)		
Beans ^a	5%	CA treated 5% of dry beans in 2002. No usage on any bean crop indicated in USDA/NASS 1998, 2000 & 2002 nor in EPA proprietary data 1995 - 2003. (CA grows 6% of US dry beans.)		
Soybeans	<1% ^b	No usage on soybean crop indicated in USDA/NASS 1998-2003 nor in EPA proprietary data 1995-2003. No usage indicated on soybeans post-harvest in USDA/NASS 1999.		
Sugarbeets	<1% ^b	No usage on sugarbeet crop indicated in EPA proprietary data 1995-2003.		
Nursery & Floriculture	<1%	Less than 3,000 lbs used with an application rate of 2 lbs a.i. per acre per year.		
Golf Courses	<1%	Based on EPA proprietary data 1998- 2001.		

^a Usage information only reflects use in California.

Tolerances

• Currently there are 24 chloroneb tolerances.

Technical Registrant

• Kincaid Enterprises, Inc

III. Summary of Chloroneb Risk Assessment

The following is a summary of EPA's health and ecological risk findings and conclusions for chloroneb, as presented fully in the documents: "Chloroneb HED Chapter PC Code 027301. DP

^b Databases listed did not detect use on the crop.

Barcode D297697" (12/30/2004); "Chloroneb: Characterization of Potential Carcinogenic Risk from Dietary Exposure PC Code: 027301: DP Barcode D319995" (09/21/2005); "Environmental Fate and Effects Division Risk Assessment for the Reregistration Eligibility Document for Chloroneb DP Barcode D310822." (12/31/2004); "Tier 1 Drinking Water Exposure Assessment for Chloroneb (11/15/2004); and "Phase 4: Risk Mitigation for Occupational Exposure to Chloroneb in Commercial Seed Treatment Scenarios." (9/26/2005); and "Revised Occupational Postapplication Exposure and Risk Assessment for Chloroneb." (9/29/2005).

The purpose of this section is to summarize the key features and findings of the risk assessments in order to help the reader better understand the risk management decisions reached by the Agency. While the risk assessments and related documents are not included in this document they are available in the public docket (docket # OPP-2004-0369) and the Agency's website at: http://www.epa.gov/pesticides/reregistration/status.htm.

A. Human Health Risk Assessment

The Agency has conducted a human health risk assessment for chloroneb for the purposes of making a reregistration decision. Although there are several studies missing from the database, the Agency evaluated the toxicology, product and residue chemistry, and occupational/residential exposure studies submitted for chloroneb and determined that the data are adequate to support a reregistration decision. More in depth details of the toxicity, product and residue chemistry, and occupational/residential studies used to develop the risk assessments and to support the guidelines are provided in the human health risk assessment and separate disciplinary chapters associated with this document. These documents are available in the electronic docket. A summary of the human health risk assessment findings and conclusions is provided in the following subsections below.

1. Hazard Profile

The toxicology database is not complete due primarily to unacceptable older or missing studies. Data considered key to the chloroneb risk assessment which are now required are the: 2-generation reproduction data in the rat; oncogenicity data in the mouse; and combined chronic toxicity/oncogenicity data in the rat. A special hazard based FQPA safety factor is not required since there are no residual uncertainties for prenatal toxicity, but an FQPA database uncertainty factor (UF) of 10X is required due to the lack of an acceptable 2-generation reproductive toxicity study.

There are no acceptable oncogenicity studies with which to assess the carcinogenic potential of chloroneb. In a non-guideline rat carcinogenicity study, no compound-related effects were observed in the tumor results; this study was deemed unacceptable due to several significant flaws. However, several mutagenicity studies indicate that chloroneb is not a mutagen. Chloroneb did test positive for chromosome damage in one mammalian cell line, but negative in another. Chloroneb did not cause unscheduled DNA synthesis in rat hepatocyte cultures. Together, the data suggest that chloroneb does

not react directly with DNA and if it were determined to be a carcinogen, there is a strong possibility it would exhibit a threshold response. If it did exhibit a threshold response, the existing methodology for estimating non-cancer risks which utilizes a NOAEL from a chronic (2-year) dog study and a 1,000 fold composite uncertainty factor would be adequately protective for cancer. To confirm this assumption, both rat and mouse carcinogenicity studies will be required as a follow-up to this RED.

Acute toxicity studies (Table 4) with the formulated products (e.g., wettable powder) indicate low toxicity via the oral, dermal, and inhalation routes (Category IV), but chloroneb is a dermal sensitizer.

Table 4. Acute Toxicity Profile - Test Substance					
Guideline No.	Study Type	MRID(s)	Results	Toxicity Category	
870.1100	Acute oral -rat; Demosan 88% chloroneb	00032544	LD ₅₀ > 5,000 mg/kg	IV	
870.1200	Acute dermal -rabbit; chloroneb 75% WP	00093893	LD ₅₀ > 5,000 mg/kg	IV	
870.1300	Acute inhalation -rat; chloroneb 65% WP	00004982	$LC_{50} = 25.2 \text{ mg/L}$	IV	
870.2400	Acute eye irritation -rabbit; chloroneb 65% WP	00004983	conjunctivitis	III	
870.2500	Acute dermal irritation -rabbit; Nu Flo ND chloroneb 30%	00032544	slightly irritating	IV	
870.2600	Skin sensitization -guinea pig; chloroneb 35.5% a.i.	00063019	sensitizer		

The toxicological doses and endpoints for chloroneb for use in the human risk assessment are found in Table 5.

	Table 5. Summary of Toxicological Doses and Endpoints for Chloroneb for Use in Human Risk Assessments				
Exposure Scenario	Dose Used in Risk Assessment, UF	Special FQPA SF and Level of Concern for Risk Assessment	Study and Toxicological Effects		
Chronic Dietary (All populations)	NOAEL= 12.5 mg/kg/day UF = 1000 Chronic RfD = 0.013 mg/kg/day	FQPA SF = 1 cPAD = chronic RfD FQPA SF = 0.013 mg/kg/day	2-year dog feeding study LOAEL = 62.5 mg/kg/day based on body weight loss, increased absolute and relative liver weight, increased alanine aminotransferase (ALT) and/or alkaline phosphates, hepatocyte pigmentation, moderate thyroid activity		

Table 5. Summary of Toxicological Doses and Endpoints for Chloroneb for Use in Human Risk Assessments				
Exposure Scenario	Dose Used in Risk Assessment, UF	Special FQPA SF and Level of Concern for Risk Assessment	Study and Toxicological Effects	
Short- and Intermediate- Term Incidental Oral (1-30 days and 1-6 months)	NOAEL= 25 mg/kg/day	Residential LOC for MOE = 1000 Occupational = Not applicable (NA)	90-day rat feeding study LOAEL = 250 mg/kg/day based on increased urinary glucose in both sexes, increased urinary epithelial cells in males and urinary leukocytes in females, liver cell hypertrophy, and renal tubular degeneration	
Short- and Intermediate- Term Dermal (1 to 30 days, and 1-6 months)	Oral study NOAEL= 25 mg/kg/day (dermal absorption rate is assumed to be 100%; default assumption)	Residential LOC for MOE =1000 Occupational LOC for MOE =100	90-day rat feeding study LOAEL = 250 mg/kg/day based on increased urinary glucose in both sexes, increased urinary epithelial cells in males and urinary leukocytes in females, liver cell hypertrophy, and renal tubular degeneration	
Short- and Intermediate- Term Inhalation (1 to 30 days and 1-6 months)	Oral study NOAEL= 25 mg/kg/day (dermal absorption rate is assumed to be 100%; default assumption)	Residential LOC for MOE = NA Occupational LOC for MOE = 100	90-day rat feeding study LOAEL = 250 mg/kg/day based on increased urinary glucose in both sexes, increased urinary epithelial cells in males and urinary leukocytes in females, liver cell hypertrophy, and renal tubular degeneration	

2. Dietary Exposure and Risk from Food and Water

a. Acute Dietary (Food and Water)

An acute reference dose was not determined because an appropriate quantitative estimate of hazard (i.e., an adverse effect attributable to a single dose) was not identified from the toxicological database to which an acute exposure estimate could be compared.

b. Chronic Dietary (Food and Water)

A risk estimate that is less than 100% of the chronic PAD (cPAD) (the dose at which an individual could be exposed over the course of a lifetime and no adverse health effects would be expected) is not of concern to the Agency. A Tier 1 chronic (non-cancer) dietary risk assessment was conducted using the Lifeline TM Model Version 2.0 with food consumption data from the United States Department of Agriculture's (USDA) Continuing Surveys of Food intakes by the Individuals (CSFII) from 1994-1996 and 1998.

Drinking water contribution to the dietary exposure was incorporated into Lifeline as a point estimate. Drinking water estimation methods are summarized below. For a more complete explanation of the addition of water in the dietary analysis, please see the health effects risk assessment and the drinking water memorandum.

The Uncertainty Factor is 1000, which includes 10X for inter-species extrapolation, 10X for intraspecies variability, and a 10X FQPA database uncertainty factor, due to data gaps. The chronic PAD equals 0.013 mg/kg/day. The most highly exposed population subgroup was all infants <1 year of age at 65% cPAD (food and water), which is below the Agency's level of concern (Table 6).

Table 6. Summary of Chronic (non-cancer) Dietary Exposure and Risk for Chloroneb					
		Food Only		Food + Water	
Population Subgroup	cPAD, mg/kg/day	Exposure, mg/kg/day	% cPAD	Exposure, mg/kg/day	% cPAD
General U.S. Population		0.001151	9	0.002159	22
All Infants (< 1 yr)		0.001789	14	0.005808	65
Children 1-2 yrs		0.003510	27	0.005595	54
Children 3-5 yrs	0.012	0.002916	22	0.004718	46
Children 6-12 yrs	0.013	0.001883	14	0.002972	29
Youth 13-19 yrs		0.001091	8	0.001848	18
Adults 20-49 yrs		0.000937	7	0.001833	19
Adults 50+ yrs		0.000902	7	0.001828	19
Females 13-49 yrs		0.001070	8	0.002049	21

c. Drinking Water Estimates

Typically, EPA evaluates the potential for human exposure to pesticides in drinking water through an assessment of available surface water and groundwater monitoring data and modeling. Drinking water exposure to pesticides can occur through surface and/or ground water contamination. EPA considers acute (one day), chronic (lifetime), and cancer (lifetime) drinking water risks and uses either modeling or actual monitoring data, if available, to estimate those risks. Modeling is carried out in tiers of further refinement, but is designed to provide a high-end estimate of exposure.

There were no monitoring data for chloroneb in water available to the Agency. The drinking water estimated concentrations (DWECs) for human health risk assessment are based on ornamental turf use, assume an unrestricted use pattern, and include total toxic (non-volatile) residues (Table 7). A site in Florida was chosen, as this site is expected to be the most vulnerable.

The ornamental spring and fall turf use patterns were used in the aquatic modeling. They were chosen over the late fall application pattern even thought that pattern has a much higher single application rate (16.2 lb a.i./acre), because the time period that encompasses "late fall" (approximately six weeks) is

shorter than the time period that could be considered "spring " and "fall" (approximately six months). Therefore, because the labels for these uses do not specify maximum number of applications or application intervals, there is the potential for more active ingredient to be applied using the spring and fall use patterns.

Table 7. Summary of Estimated Surface and Ground Water Concentrations for Chloroneb.					
Exposure Duration Chloroneb					
	Surface Water Conc., ppb ^a	Ground Water Conc., ppbb			
cute 2140 69.1		69.1			
Chronic (non-cancer)	118	69.1			

^a From the Tier 2 PRZM-EXAMS - Index Reservoir model. Input parameters are based on golf course and ornamental turf use (8.85 lb ai/A/application, 20 applications/season, 3-day retreatment interval) and include total toxic (non-volatile) residues.

It is highly likely that this conservative set of DWECs exceed the values that occur in the environment. The predicted values are based on essentially unrestricted label use patterns (twenty applications at 8.85 lb ai/A spaced at 3-day intervals) and the very limited environmental fate data set available for chloroneb. Such an application practice is not likely to be used, but would not be prohibited by the current label.

3. Residential Exposure and Risk

Residential risk assessments were conducted for postapplication (non-occupational) scenarios (dermal and incidental oral) using standard exposure inputs and assumptions in the absence of chemical-specific data, including 100% dermal absorption for dermal exposures, and are based on the maximum registered use rate for chloroneb (15.9 lb ai/A spray treatment on turf grass). Exposure duration is considered short-term (1-30 days); hence, the short-/intermediate-term endpoint was used for all risk assessments. Registered use of chloroneb on turf may result in individuals of varying ages potentially being exposed as a result of activities in areas that have been treated. Chloroneb products are only professionally applied in the residential settings; therefore residential handler exposure is not expected.

a. Residential Postapplication Exposure and Risk

Of the residential (non-occupational) postapplication scenarios evaluated, all had MOEs of concern (< 1000) (Table 8). The target Margin of Exposure (MOE) is 1000 for residential assessments. This is based on 10X for intraspecies extrapolation, 10X interspecies variation, and an additional 10X FQPA data base uncertainty factor due to data gaps.

^b From the SCI-GROW model. Input parameters are based on ornamental turf use (8.85 lb ai/A/application, 20 applications/season, 3-day retreatment interval) and include total toxic (non-volatile) residues.

Table 8. Residential	(Non-Occupational) Risk from Treated Turf				
Population Subgroup	Scenario (Transfer Coefficient, cm²/hr)	Route	МО	Total MOE ¹	
			(HED LOC for MOE is 1000)		
	High Contact Activities (HCA) (14500)	Dermal	6.8		
Adult	Golfer (500)	Dermal	98		NA
	High Contact Activities (HCA) (5200)	Dermal	4		
Child	Hand-to-Mouth (HTM)	Oral	110		3.8
	Object-to-Mouth (OTM)	Oral	420	87	
	Soil Ingestion (SI)	Oral	31000		

 $^{^{1}}$ Total MOE = 1 / (1/MOE_{HCA} + 1/MOE_{HTM} + 1/MOE_{OTM} + 1/MOE_{SI})

4. Aggregate Exposure and Risk

An aggregate risk assessment looks at the combined risk from dietary exposure (food and drinking water pathways) as well as exposures from non-occupational sources (e.g., residential uses). Potential exposures from food, drinking water, and residential scenarios were considered, and aggregated for chloroneb. The pathways for adults lead to exposure via the oral (dietary) and dermal (residential) routes. The pathways for children lead to exposure via the oral (dietary) and, dermal and incidental oral (residential) routes.

Acute exposures were not considered because an appropriate quantitative estimate of hazard (i.e., an adverse effect attributable to a single dose) was not identified from the toxicological database to which an acute exposure estimate could be compared.

There is potential short-term exposure to chloroneb via the dietary and residential pathways. The aggregate risks from residential exposure alone (excluding dietary exposure), all had MOEs of concern (<1000) (see residential risk section for MOEs).

Because no long-term residential exposure scenarios are expected, the chronic aggregate assessment considered only food and drinking water exposures. The chronic dietary (food + water) risk assessment was conducted using total toxic residue estimates, an additional 10X FQPA database uncertainty factor for the lack of certain toxicology data, 100% crop treated, and maximum theoretical concentration factors for cottonseed oil and soybean oil. The chronic risk estimate was below the Agency's level of concern for the U.S. General population and all subgroups. Dietary exposures from

food and water combined ranged from 18% to 65% (infants <1 year of age) of the chronic Population Adjusted Dose (cPAD).

5. Occupational Exposure and Risk

Workers can be exposed by mixing, loading, or applying (handlers) chloroneb or by entering a previously treated site (postapplication). Worker risk is also measured as a MOE, which determines how close the occupational exposure comes to a NOAEL. The Agency initially calculates a "baseline assessment" which is the handler's risk using the least amount of protective measures. For individuals involved in applications, this assessment normally accounts for an individual's normal work clothing (e.g., long sleeve shirt and long pants), no gloves, and no respirator. If there is a concern at this level, the Agency considers the use of protective measures (e.g., personal protective equipment and engineering controls) to lower the risk. Personal protective equipment (PPE) can include an additional layer of clothing, chemically-resistant gloves, and a respirator. Common examples of engineering controls include: enclosed tractor cabs, closed loading systems, and water-soluble packaging.

Occupational risk assessments were conducted for handler and postapplication exposure scenarios. Assessments were conducted using standard exposure values and assumptions in the absence of chemical-specific data, including 100% dermal absorption, and are based on the maximum registered use rates for chloroneb. The occupational level of concern (LOC) is based on the conventional uncertainty factor of 10X for intraspecies extrapolation and 10X for interspecies variation. Therefore, MOEs >100 are below the Agency level of concern.

Occupational handlers may be exposed by the dermal route and by the inhalation route during mixing, loading and application of chloroneb for both short-and intermediate-term durations.

A number of occupational handler exposure scenarios, even after the inclusion of the highest possible PPE level (not including engineering controls), had MOEs of concern (<100). These scenarios included:

- all mixer/loader/application scenarios for turf/woody ornamentals/bedding plants/ferns
- mixing/loading wettable powder for groundboom application on turf
- all loader/applicator scenarios for the use of wettable powder (WP) formulations in commercial seed treatments
- loading/applying liquid and multiple activities for commercial soybean seed treatment
- all on-farm seed treatment scenarios except sugar beets.

The MOEs of concern ranged from 8.9 - 97 and are shown in Table 9.

Fable 9. Short-/Intermediate-Term Occupational Handler Risk Estimates for Chloroneb								
Exposure Scenario [PHED Unit Exposures unless otherwise noted]	Daily Area Treated ¹	Crop/Target	Application Rate ²	Combined MOE ³	Mitigation Level ⁴			
	Mixer/Loader							
Mixing/Loading Wettable Powder for Groundboom application	40	Turf	15.9	15	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/80% R			
N	/Iixer/Loader/	Applicators & Loade	er/Applicators					
	40	Turf	0.07312	68	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/80% R			
M/L/A Wettable Powder with a Low Pressure Handwand Sprayer		Woody Ornamentals, Bedding Plants, and Ferns	0.078	63	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/80% R			
M/L/A Wettable Powder with a Handgun Sprayer (ORETF data)	5	Turf	15.9	28	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/80% R			
M/L/A Wettable Powder with a High Pressure Handwand	1000	Woody Ornamentals, Bedding Plants, and Ferns	0.078	8.9	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/80% R			
M/L/A Wettable Powder in Water Soluble Packets with a Handgun Sprayer (ORETF data)	5	Turf	15.9	34	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/80% R			
L/A granules with a Push-type	5	Turf	16.2	95	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/NR			
Spreader (ORETF data)				97	PPE - Baseline+Glov es/80% R			
Loader/Applicator								

Table 9. Short-/Intermediate-Term Occupational Handler Risk Estimates for Chloroneb						
Exposure Scenario [PHED Unit Exposures unless otherwise noted]	Daily Area Treated ¹	Crop/Target	Application Rate ²	Combined MOE ³	Mitigation Level ⁴	
	160000	Cotton	0.004875	16	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
Loading Wettable Powder for Commercial Seed Treatment	718000	Soybeans	0.001875	9.4	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
(PHED data)	194000	Beans, other	0.001875	35	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
	88000	Sugar Beets	0.002438	59	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
Loading/Applying Liquid for Commercial Seed Treatment	718000	Soybeans	0.001875	72	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
	1	Multiple Activities				
Multiple Activities for Commercial Seed Treatment	718000	Soybeans	0.001875	61	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
	On-	Farm Seed Treatmer	nt			
	3600	Cotton	0.004875	16	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
On-Farm Seed Treatment using Wettable Powder or Liquid formulations	12000	Soybeans	0.001875	12	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	
	8000	Beans, other	0.001875	19	PPE - Double Layer+Gloves/8 0% R	

¹Amount treated is expressed in acres/day for all scenarios, except M/L/A Wettable Powder with a Low Pressure Handwand Sprayer, M/L/A Wettable Powder with a High Pressure Handwand, and M/L/A Wettable Powder in Water Soluble Packets with a Handgun Sprayer which are expressed in gallons/day, and seed treatment is expressed as lbs seed/day.

Baseline: Long sleeve shirt, long pants, shoes/socks, no respirator

²Application rates are expressed as lbs ai/acre for all scenarios except M/L/A Wettable Powder with a Low Pressure Handwand Sprayer, M/L/A Wettable Powder with a High Pressure Handwand, and M/L/A Wettable Powder in Water Soluble Packets with a Handgun Sprayer which are expressed in lb ai/gallon, and seed treatment are expressed as lb ai/lb seed.

³Combined MOE = Oral NOAEL (25 mg/kg/day) / Daily Combined (Dermal + Inhalation) Dose.

⁴ Mitigation Levels

PPE - Baseline+Gloves/NR: PPE - Baseline+Gloves/80% R: Long sleeve shirt, long pants, shoes/socks, chemical resistant gloves, no respirator Long sleeve shirt, long pants, shoes/socks, chemical resistant gloves, dust/mist respirator with a reduction factor of 80%

All occupational postapplication exposure scenarios had MOEs of concern (<100) at 0-day, except hand pinching woody ornamentals and bedding plants in greenhouses (Table 10). For all other scenarios, Restricted Entry Intervals (REIs) of 5-days to >20 days are required to achieve acceptable MOEs.

Table 10. Occupational Postapplication Exposure						
Crops	Activities (Transfer Coefficient, cm²/hr)	Maximum Application Rate (lb ai/acre)	MOE (Day 0)			
Turf Maintenance (golf courses, recreational areas, sod	Mowing, Seeding, Mechanical Weeding, Aerating, Fertilizing, Pruning (3400)	16	7.2			
farms, etc.)	Transplanting, Hand Weeding (6800)	16	3.6			
	Hand Pinching [greenhouse] (175)	3.9	140			
Woody Ornamentals and Bedding Plants	"Harvesting" [Reorganizing pots, loading plants onto trucks] (400)	3.9	63			
Ferns	Harvesting (5100)	3.9	4.9			

6. Occupational Incidents Reports

One occupational incident case was reported to the Poison Control Center in 1994 involving inhalation by a 23 year old adult male who reported a headache. Detailed descriptions of 17 cases involving chloroneb were submitted to the California Pesticide Illness Surveillance Program (1982-2002). In four of these cases, chloroneb was used alone or was judged to be responsible for the health effect. These four cases (1982-1988) involved: (1) a definitive case involving the eyes with no additional details reported; (2) a possible skin reaction in a worker planting cottonseed; (3) the development of nonspecific, systemic symptoms in a worker transporting cottonseed; and (4) acute bilateral conjunctivitis with possible chemical burn in a worker planting beans.

B. Environmental Risk Assessment

The Agency has conducted an environmental assessment for chloroneb for the purposes of making a reregistration decision. The Agency evaluated environmental fate and ecological studies submitted for chloroneb and determined that the data are adequate to support a reregistration decision. More in depth

details of the toxicity to aquatic and terrestrial organisms and fate and persistence studies used to develop the risk assessments and to support the guidelines are provided in the environmental risk assessment and in separate disciplinary chapters associated with this document. These documents are provided in the electronic docket. A summary of the environmental risk assessment findings and conclusions are provided in the following subsections below.

1. Environmental Fate and Transport Properties

The assessment of the fate and transport properties of chloroneb is based upon an incomplete data set. Therefore, there are uncertainties associated with the fate and transport behavior of chloroneb and its major degradates. Based on available data, chloroneb is expected to leach to ground water under sandy soils, as degradation would be expected to slow down when chloroneb leaches below the root zone. Chloroneb is mobile and is expected to be transported to surface water, through runoff.

2. Ecological Risk Assessment

To estimate potential ecological risk, EPA integrates the results of exposure and ecotoxicity studies using the quotient method. Risk quotients (RQs) are a screening level for potential risk and calculated by dividing exposure estimates by ecotoxicity values, both acute and chronic, for various wildlife species. RQs are then compared to levels of concern (LOCs). Generally, the higher the RQ, the greater the potential risk. Risk characterization provides further information on the likelihood of adverse effects occurring by considering the fate of the chemical in the environment, communities and species potentially at risk, their spatial and temporal distributions, and the nature of the effects observed in studies.

3. Risks to Aquatic Animals

Acute risk to non-endangered freshwater fish and invertebrates is below the Agency's level of concern for chloroneb seed treatment uses and the uses on ornamentals. The golf course turf and ornamental turf uses are also below the acute level of concern, however, they exceed the restricted use and endangered species levels of concern for freshwater organisms. The risks to aquatic-phase amphibians are assessed using freshwater fish as a surrogate; the risk to amphibians are assumed to be the same as those to freshwater fish. No chronic aquatic toxicity data have been submitted for freshwater aquatic species. Therefore, the Agency cannot dismiss the possibility that there are chronic risks for freshwater fish, amphibians, and invertebrates for all registered uses of chloroneb. In addition, no acute or chronic toxicity data have been submitted to assess risk to estuarine and marine organisms to chloroneb. As a result, the screening level assessment cannot dismiss the possibility that there are acute and chronic risks to estuarine and marine species for all registered uses of chloroneb.

4. Risk to Terrestrial Animals

For avian species, although the acute and restricted use levels of concern exceed for some uses based on maximum application rates, the Agency considers it unlikely that non-endangered avian species are at risk from use of chloroneb. Because there is no acute toxicity endpoint established (the avian LD50 was >5000 ppm) and because of the conservative nature of the risk assessment process it was assumed that the exceedances do not represent 'actual' exceedances. Risks to endangered avian species, however, cannot be dismissed for any of the uses because there was some mortality noted in the bobwhite quail acute toxicity study at the lowest dose tested (156 ppm). There were no data to assess the potential chronic effects to avian species, therefore, the Agency cannot dismiss the possibility that there are chronic risks to birds. The risks to reptiles and terrestrial phase amphibians are assessed by using birds as a surrogate, so risks to these species are assumed to be the same as those to birds.

The acute oral LD50 in rats and acute dermal LD50 in rabbits were both >5000 ppm, therefore, chloroneb is considered practically non-toxic to mammals. However, other relevant acute and no chronic mammalian toxicity data were submitted on chloroneb. As a result, the risks to mammals could not be fully assessed. Therefore, the Agency cannot dismiss the possibility that there are acute and chronic risks to mammals for all registered uses of chloroneb. In addition, no data were submitted on the toxicity of chloroneb to bees. As a result, risks to terrestrial invertebrates from foliar uses of chloroneb (golf course turf, ornamental turf, and ornamental) cannot be precluded.

5. Risks to Plants

Plant toxicity data are required when there is some indication that there may be significant toxicity to plants. These indicators may be a herbicidal mode of action, or statements on the label indicating toxicity to plants. None of these indicators are present for chloroneb, and no plant toxicity data have been submitted by the registrant. Therefore, the risks to plants (terrestrial or semi-aquatic) were not assessed.

6. Endangered Species

The screening level risk assessment for endangered species indicates that chloroneb either exceeds the endangered species LOCs or that data are lacking to assess risks for endangered species, as follows:

- Avian, and thus, reptiles and terrestrial phase amphibians (based on RQ exceedance of the acute LOC, and absence of relevant chronic data)

Cotton and sugar beets: seed treatment- RQ exceedance of the acute LOC Turf and ornamentals: foliar application- RQ exceedance of the acute LOC Remaining uses- absence of relevant chronic data

- Mammals (based on absence of relevant acute and chronic toxicity data)

*All uses- absence of relevant acute and chronic toxicity data

- Freshwater fish and invertebrates, and, thus, aquatic phase amphibians (based on RQ exceedance of the acute LOC, and absence of chronic data)
 Turf: foliar application- RQ exceedance of the acute LOC
 Remaining uses- absence of relevant chronic data
- Estuarine/marine fish and invertebrates (based on absence of relevant acute and chronic toxicity data)

All uses- absence of relevant acute and chronic toxicity data

These findings are based solely on EPA's screening level assessment and do not constitute "may affect" findings under the Endangered Species Act.

IV. Risk Management, Reregistration, and Tolerance Reassessment Decision

A. Determination of Reregistration Eligibility

Section 4(g)(2)(A) of FIFRA calls for the Agency to determine, after submission of relevant data concerning an active ingredient, whether or not products containing the active ingredient are eligible for reregistration. The Agency has reviewed all available scientific data for chloroneb and has determined that the data are sufficient to support reregistration of all products containing chloroneb.

The Agency has completed its assessment of the dietary, occupational, residential, and ecological risk associated with the use of pesticide products containing the active ingredient chloroneb. Based on a review of these data and on public comments on the Agency's assessments for the active ingredient, chloroneb, the Agency has sufficient information on the human health and ecological effects of chloroneb to make decisions as part of the tolerance reassessment process under FFDCA and reregistration process under FIFRA, as amended by FQPA. The Agency has determined that chloroneb containing products are eligible for reregistration provided that: (i) current data gaps and confirmatory data needs are addressed; (ii) the risk mitigation measures outlined in this document are adopted; and (iii) label amendments are made to reflect these measures. Label changes are described in Section V. Appendix A summarizes the uses of chloroneb that are eligible for reregistration. Appendix B identifies the generic data requirements that the Agency reviewed as part of its determination of reregistration eligibility of chloroneb, and lists the submitted studies that the Agency found acceptable. Data gaps are identified as generic data requirements that have not been satisfied with acceptable data or data that are needed to confirm the decisions presented here.

Based on its evaluation of chloroneb, the Agency has determined that chloroneb products, unless labeled and used as specified in this document, would present risks inconsistent with FIFRA. Accordingly, should a registrant fail to implement any of the risk mitigation measures identified in this document, the Agency may take regulatory action to address the risk concerns from the use of

chloroneb. If all changes outlined in this document are incorporated into the product labels, then all current risks for chloroneb will be adequately mitigated for the purposes of this determination under FIFRA. Once an Endangered Species assessment is completed, further changes to these registrations may be necessary as explained in section D.3 below.

B. Public Comments and Responses

Through the Agency's public participation process, EPA worked extensively with stakeholders and the public to reach the regulatory decisions for chloroneb. During the public comment period on the risk assessments, which closed on July 25, 2005, the Agency received comments from 11 commentors:

1) The technical registrant, Kincaid Inc., had comments related to the uses, use rates and number of applications for uses that they are supporting; 2) PBI/Gordon's Corporation, an end-use product formulator, included comments related to the use on golf courses and proposals for possible risk mitigation; 3) the National Cotton Council indicated that chloroneb is one of the important fungicides that can be used as a seed treatment for cotton planting seed; 4) the Golf Course Superintendents

Association of America (GCSAA) indicated that they support the continued use of chloroneb on golf courses, and that chloroneb provides rapid control of Pythium. There were also comments from other concerned citizens that pertained to risk assessment methods and endpoints. These comments in their entirety are available in the public docket (OPP-2004-0346) at http://www.epa.gov/edockets. Detailed Responses to Comments are available in the public docket (OPP-2004-0369).

The RED and technical supporting documents for chloroneb are available to the public through EPA's electronic public docket and comment system, EPA Dockets, under docket identification (ID) number OPP-2004-0369. The public may access EPA Dockets at http://www.epa.gov/edockets. In addition, the chloroneb RED may be downloaded or viewed through the Agency's website at http://www.epa.gov/pesticides/reregistration/status.htm.

C. Regulatory Position

1. Food Quality Protection Act Findings

a. "Risk Cup" Determination

As part of the FQPA tolerance reassessment process, EPA assessed the risks associated with this pesticide. EPA has determined that risk from dietary (food and water sources) exposure to chloroneb is within its own "risk cup." An aggregate assessment was conducted for exposures through food, drinking water, and residential uses. The Agency has determined that the human health risks from these combined exposures are within acceptable levels with the mitigation cited below. In other words, EPA has concluded that the tolerances for chloroneb meet FQPA safety standards. In reaching this determination, EPA has considered the available information on the special sensitivity of infants and

children.

b. Determination of Safety to U.S. Population (Including Infants and Children)

The Agency has determined that the established tolerances for chloroneb, with amendments and changes as specified in this document, meet the safety standards under the FQPA amendments to section 408(b) (2) (D) and 408(b) (2) (c) of the FFDCA, and that there is a reasonable certainty that no harm will result to infants, children, or the general population or any subgroup from the use of chloroneb. The safety determination for infants and children considers factors including toxicity, use practices, and environmental behavior noted above for the general population, but also takes into account the possibility of increased dietary exposure due to specific consumption patterns of infants and children, as well as the possibility of increased susceptibility to the toxic effects of chloroneb residues in this population subgroup.

No special FQPA Safety Factor is necessary to protect the safety of infants and children. In determining whether or not infants and children are particularly susceptible to toxic effects from chloroneb residues, the Agency considered the nature of the effects observed in available studies, and other information. Thus, the special FQPA safety factor has been removed (i.e., reduced to 1X) for chloroneb based on no residual uncertainties for prenatal toxicity. However, an FQPA Database uncertainty factor has been retained due to the lack of an acceptable reproductive toxicity study.

c. Endocrine Disruptor Effects

EPA is required under the FFDCA, as amended by FQPA, to develop a screening program to determine whether certain substances (including all pesticide active and other ingredients) "may have an effect in humans that is similar to an effect produced by a naturally occurring estrogen, or other endocrine effects as the Administrator may designate." Following recommendations of its Endocrine Disruptor Screening and Testing Advisory Committee (EDSTAC), EPA determined that there was a scientific basis for including, as part of the program, the androgen and thyroid hormone systems, in addition to the estrogen hormone system. EPA also adopted EDSTAC's recommendation that EPA include evaluations of potential effects in wildlife. For pesticides, EPA will use FIFRA and, to the extent that effects in wildlife may help determine whether a substance may have an effect in humans, FFDCA authority to require the wildlife evaluations. As the science develops and resources allow, screening of additional hormone systems may be added to the Endocrine Disruptor Screening Program (EDSP).

In the available toxicity studies on chloroneb, there was no estrogen and/or androgen mediated toxicity; however, there was increased moderate-severe thyroid histopathology in both the rat and dog, which was characterized as "increased activity", without further characterization as to c-cell or follicular cell origin.

When additional appropriate screening and/or testing protocols being considered under the

Agency's EDSP have been developed, chloroneb may be subjected to further screening and/or testing to better characterize effects related to endocrine disruption.

d. Cumulative Risks

Risks summarized in this document are those that result only from the use of chloroneb. The Food Quality Protection Act (FQPA) requires that the Agency consider "available information" concerning the cumulative effects of a particular pesticide's residues and "other substances that have a common mechanism of toxicity." The reason for consideration of other substances is due to the possibility that low-level exposures to multiple chemical substances that cause a common toxic effect by a common toxic mechanism could lead to the same adverse health effect as would a higher level of exposure to any of the substances individually. Unlike other pesticides for which EPA has followed a cumulative risk approach based on a common mechanism of toxicity, EPA has not made a common mechanism of toxicity finding for chloroneb.

2. Tolerance Reassessment Summary

A tolerance summary is presented below in table 11. The tolerances listed in 40 CFR §180.257(a) are expressed in terms of chloroneb (1,4-dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene) and its metabolite (DCMP) 2,5-dichloro-4-methoxyphenol (calculated as chloroneb). The tolerance expression should be amended to include residues of the conjugate of 2,5-dichloro-4-methoxypheno.

Table 11. Tolerance Reassessment Summary for Chloroneb.					
Commodity	Current Tolerance (ppm) 1	Tolerance Reassessment (ppm) ²	Comment/[Correct Commodity Definition]		
	Tolerances	Listed Under 40 C	FR §180.257 (a):		
Bean	0.1(N)	0.2	[Bean, succulent] [Bean, seed] Given the validated limit of quantitation for residues of chloroneb and DCMP in/on plants the tolerance will be set at 0.2 ppm.		
Bean, forage	2	2	[Cowpea, forage]		
Beet, sugar, roots	0.1(N)	0.2	Given the validated limit of quantitation for residues of chloroneb and DCMP in/on plants the tolerance will be set at 0.2 ppm		
Beet, sugar, tops	0.1(N)	0.2	Given the validated limit of quantitation for residues of chloroneb and DCMP in/on plants the tolerance will be set at 0.2 ppm		
Cotton, forage	2	Revoke	EPA no longer requires tolerances for cotton forage.		

Table 11. Tolerance Reas	ssessment Summary f	or Chloroneb.		
Commodity	Current Tolerance (ppm) 1	Tolerance Reassessment (ppm) ²	Comment/[Correct Commodity Definition]	
Cotton, undelinted seed	0.1(N)	0.2	Given the validated limit of quantitation for residues of chloroneb and DCMP in/on plants the tolerance will be set at 0.2 ppm	
Soybean	0.1(N)	0.2	Given the validated limit of quantitation for residues of chloroneb and DCMP in/on plants the tolerance will be set at 0.2 ppm	
Soybean, forage	2	2		
Cattle, fat	0.2			
Cattle, meat	0.2			
Cattle, meat byproducts	0.2			
Goat, fat	0.2			
Goat, meat	0.2			
Goat, meat byproducts	0.2			
Hog, fat	0.2			
Hog, meat	0.2	To Be	Description of the classic data are accorded to the confirmation of the confirmation o	
Hog, meat byproducts	0.2	Determined	Ruminant metabolism data are required to confirm the nature and amount of the residues in meat	
Horse, fat	0.2	(TBD) ³	and milk.	
Horse, meat	0.2			
Horse, meat byproducts	0.2			
Milk	0.05(N)			
Sheep, fat	0.2			
Sheep, meat	0.2			
Sheep, meat byproducts	0.2			
	Tolerances to	Be Proposed unde	r 40 CFR 180.257(a):	
Cotton, gin byproducts	None established	1		
Cowpea, hay	None established	2		
Soybean, hay	None established	2		
Cottonseed, oil	None established	TBD	Cottonseed oil and soybean oil data are required; otherwise, tolerances should be set on cottonseed oil and soybean oil at 1 ppm and 2	
Soybean, oil	None established		ppm, respectively, based on maximum theoretical estimates	

⁽N) = Negligible residues.

Reassessed tolerances are based on the available plant metabolism and magnitude of the residue data taken as a whole. Residues of concern in/on bean, undelinted cottonseed, soybeans, sugarbeet roots and sugarbeet tops are not expected to exceed 0.1 ppm; however, reassessed tolerance levels for these commodities are set at

- the validated LOQ of the enforcement method for residues of chloroneb and DCMP (free and conjugated), 0.2 ppm (total).
- The Agency has no dietary, drinking water, or residential risk concerns associated with these tolerances and consider them reassessed at the current tolerance level. The "TBD" designation is used, however, to convey that the Agency expects that the data required in the DCI that will be issued as a result of this RED will confirm that conclusion.

D. Regulatory Rationale

The Agency has determined that chloroneb is eligible for reregistration provided that: additional required data are submitted to confirm this decision; the risk mitigation measures outlined in this document are adopted; and, label amendments are made to reflect these measures.

The following is a summary of the rationale for managing risks associated with the use of chloroneb. Where labeling revisions are warranted, specific language is set forth in the summary tables of Section V of this document.

1. Human Health Risk Management

a. Aggregate Risk Mitigation

1) Short-/Intermediate Term Aggregate Risk Mitigation

Short term exposure to chloroneb may occur after application at homes (commercially treated home lawns); or after applications at golf courses, parks, schools, or other areas where chloroneb may be applied to turf.

To mitigate residential post-application risks to children and adults, the registrant has agreed to voluntarily cancel the use of chloroneb on residential lawns and turf, as well as on lawns and turf in parks and at schools. In addition, the registrant has agreed to amend labeling to remove all other turf uses pending receipt, review, and acceptance of a 21-day dermal toxicology study and reevaluation of risk. Risk will be re-evaluated using the following revised use patterns/restrictions, which have been agreed upon by the registrant.

- restriction of use on turf to golf course tees, greens, collars, aprons, and spot treatment of fairways, as well as professional athletic turf (football, baseball fields, etc.).
- limit the number of applications on golf courses to 6 per year; 4 applications at 7 lb ai/A and 2 applications at 16 lb ai/A.

- limit maximum use per year on golf courses to 60 lb ai/acre/year.
- require a minimum retreatment interval of 14 days for golf course tees, greens, and aprons, and professional athletic fields.

b. Occupational Risk Mitigation

1) Handler Exposure

Handlers may be exposed to chloroneb while mixing, loading or applying chloroneb pesticides. A number of occupational handler exposure scenarios, even after the inclusion of the highest possible PPE level (not including engineering controls), have MOEs of concern (<100). These scenarios include:

- all mixer/loader/application scenarios for turf/woody ornamentals/bedding plants/ferns
- mixing/loading wettable powder for groundboom application on turf
- all loader/applicator scenarios for the use of wettable powder (WP) formulations in commercial seed treatments
- loading/applying liquid and multiple activities for commercial soybean seed treatment
- all on-farm seed treatment scenarios except sugar beets.

To mitigate the occupational handler risks, as well as occupational and residential postapplication risks, the registrant has agreed to amend its label to remove turf, ornamentals, bedding plants and ferns, as well as on-farm seed treatment use sites pending the Agency receipt, review, and acceptance of a 21-day dermal toxicology study and reevaluation of risk.

To mitigate the occupational risk from loading for commercial seed treatment, the registrant has agreed to replace the wettable powder formulation with the use of a water soluble packaging, and a closed loading system when loading/applying liquid for commercial seed treatment. The MOE's using engineering controls for these occupational scenarios are shown in Table 12.

Table 12. Occupational Risk from Commercially Treated Seed						
Exposure Scenario Crop Application Rate Combin Target (lb ai/lb seed) MOE						
Loader/Applicator						
Wettable Powder in Water Soluble Packages for	cotton	0.004875	110			

Commercial Seed Treatment

Table 12. Occupational Risk from Commercially Treated Seed						
Exposure Scenario	Crop Target	Application Rate (lb ai/lb seed)	Combined MOE			
	soybeans	0.001875	130			
	beans, other	0.001875	230			
	sugar beets	0.002438	390			
Loading/Applying Liquid in Closed Loading System for Commercial Seed Treatment	soybeans	0.001875	150			
Multiple Activities						
Multiple Activities for Commercial Seed Treatment	soybeans	0.001875	>100			

2) Post-application Risk Mitigation

Workers may be exposed to chloroneb upon entering areas which have been previously treated with chloroneb to perform specific work activities in these areas (e.g., mowing, seeding, harvesting).

To mitigate these handler and occupational and residential post-application risks, the registrant has agreed to amend its label to remove turf, ornamentals, bedding plants and ferns, as well as on-farm seed treatment from its label pending the Agency receipt, review, and acceptance of a 21-day dermal toxicology study and reevaluation of risks. Appropriate REIs will be determined considering the additional revised use patterns/restrictions below which have also been agreed upon by the registrant.

- restriction of use on turf to golf course tees, greens, collars, aprons, and spot treatment of fairways, as well as professional athletic turf (football, baseball fields, etc.)
- limit the number of applications on golf courses to 6 per year; 4 applications at 7 lb ai/A and 2 applications at 16 lb ai/A
- limit maximum use per year on golf courses to 60 lb ai/acre/year
- require a minimum retreatment interval of 14 days for golf course tees, greens, and aprons, and professional athletic fields.

2. Environmental Risk Mitigation

As described above, the registrant has agreed to voluntarily cancel the use of chloroneb on residential lawns and turf, as well as on lawns and turf at parks and schools. In addition, the registrant has agreed to:

- restrict remaining turf use to golf course tees, greens, collars, aprons, and spot treatment of fairways, as well as professional athletic turf (football, baseball fields, etc.)
- limit the number of applications on golf courses to 6 per year; 4 applications at 7 lb ai/A and 2 applications at 16 lb ai/A
- limit maximum use per year on golf courses to 60 lb ai/acre/year
- require a minimum retreatment interval of 14 days for golf course tees, greens, and aprons, and athletic professional fields.

No significant risks were identified to terrestrial or aquatic species. However, the data base is poor. Additional data will be required as a follow-up to the RED. The use restrictions and cancellations described above are expected to significantly reduce exposure to wildlife. No additional mitigation is required at this time. However, these mitigation measures do not eliminate the acute risks to endangered freshwater animals or birds for turf uses.

3. Endangered Species Considerations

The preliminary ecological risk assessment indicates that chloroneb exceeds the endangered species LOCs for the turf uses for freshwater fish and invertebrates, as well for most uses for birds. Chronic risks to endangered freshwater organisms can not be dismissed due to a lack of data. In addition, due to a lack of relevant toxicity data for mammals and marine/estuarine organisms, the screening level assessment cannot dismiss the possibility that there are acute and chronic risks for these endangered species.

The Agency has developed the Endangered Species Protection Program to identify pesticides whose use may cause adverse impacts on threatened and endangered species, and to implement mitigation measures that address these impacts. The Endangered Species Act requires federal agencies to ensure that their actions are not likely to jeopardize listed species or adversely modify designated critical habitat. To analyze the potential of registered pesticide uses that may affect any particular species, EPA uses basic toxicity and exposure data developed for the REDs and then considers ecological parameters, pesticide use information, geographic relationship between specific pesticide uses and species locations, and biological requirements and behavioral aspects of the particular species. When conducted, this species-specific analysis will also consider the risk mitigation measures that are being implemented as a result of this RED.

Following this future species-specific analysis, a determination that there is a likelihood of potential effects to a listed species may result in limitations on use of the pesticide, other measures to mitigate any potential effects, or consultations with the Fish and Wildlife Service and/or the National Marine Fisheries as appropriate. If the Agency determines use of chloroneb "may effect" listed species or their designated critical habitat, EPA will employ the provisions in the Services regulations (50 CFR Part 402). Until that

species specific analysis is completed, the risk mitigation measures being implemented through this RED will reduce the likelihood that endangered and threatened species may be exposed to chloroneb at levels of concern. EPA is not requiring specific chloroneb label language at the present time relative to threatened and endangered species. If, in the future, specific measures are necessary for the protection of listed species, the Agency will implement them through the Endangered Species Program.

4. Spray Drift Management

The Agency has been working closely with stakeholders to develop improved approaches for mitigating risks to human health and the environment from pesticide spray and dust drift. As part of the reregistration process, the Agency will continue to work with all interested parties on this important issue.

From its assessment of chloroneb, as summarized in this document, the Agency concludes that no additional drift management measures are needed for chloroneb. In the future, chloroneb product labels may be revised to include additional or different drift label.

V. What Registrants Need to Do

The Agency has determined that chloroneb is eligible for reregistration provided that (i) additional data that the Agency intends to require to confirm this decision; and (ii) the risk mitigation measures outlined in this document are adopted; and (iii) label amendments are made to reflect these measures. To implement the risk mitigation measures, the registrants must amend their product labeling to incorporate the label statements set forth in the Label Changes Summary Table in Section B below (Table 14). The additional data requirement that the Agency intends to obtain will include, among other things, submission of the following:

For chloroneb technical grade active ingredient products, registrants need to submit the following items.

Within 90 days from receipt of the generic data call-in (DCI):

- 1. Completed response forms to the generic DCI (i.e., DCI response form and requirements status and registrant's response form); and
- 2. Any time extension and/or waiver requests with a full written justification.

Within the time limit specified in the generic DCI:

1. Cite any existing generic data which address data requirements or submit new generic data responding to the DCI.

Please contact Wilhelmena Livingston at (703) 308-8025 with questions regarding generic reregistration:

By US mail:
Document Processing Desk (DCI/SRRD)
Wilhelmena Livingston
US EPA (7508C)
1200 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20460

By express or courier service:
Document Processing Desk
Wilhelmena Livingston
US EPA (7508C)
1801 Bell Street
Arlington, Virginia 2202

For end-use products containing the active ingredient chloroneb, registrants need to submit the following items for each product.

Within 90 days from the receipt of the product-specific data call-in (PDCI):

- 1. Completed response forms to the PDCI (i.e., PDCI response form and requirements status and registrant's response form); and
- 2. Any time extension or waiver requests with a full written justification.

Within eight months from the receipt of the PDCI:

- 1. Two copies of the confidential statement of formula (EPA Form 8570-4);
- 2. A completed original application for reregistration (EPA Form 8570-1). Indicate on the form that it is an "application for reregistration;"
- 3. Five copies of the draft label incorporating all label amendments outlined in Table 14 of this document;
- 4. A completed form certifying compliance with data compensation requirements (EPA Form 8570-34);
- 5. If applicable, a completed form certifying compliance with cost share offer requirements (EPA Form 8570-32); and
- 6. The product-specific data responding to the PDCI.

Please contact Bonnie Adler (703) 308-8523 with questions regarding product reregistration and/or the PDCI. Address all materials submitted in response to the PDCI to:

By US mail:
Document Processing Desk (PDCI/PRB)
Bonnie Adler
US EPA Office of Pesticide Programs
1200 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.
Washington, DC 20460

By express or courier service only:
Document Processing Desk (PDCI/PRB)
Bonnie Alder
US EPA Office of Pesticide Programs
1801 Bell Street
Arlington, Virginia 22202

A. Manufacturing-Use Products

1. Additional Generic Data Requirements

The generic database supporting the registration of chloroneb has been reviewed and determined to be substantially complete. However, the following additional data requirements have been identified by the Agency as confirmatory and included in the generic DCI for this RED (Table 13).

Table 13. Data Requirements for the Reregistration Eligibility Decision on Chloroneb				
Guideline Study Name	New OPPTS Guideline No.	Old Guideline No.		
21-day dermal toxicity study in rats	870.3200	82-2		
90-day inhalation study	870.3465	82-4		
2-generation rat reproduction study	870.3800	83-4		
18-month mouse carcinogenicity study	870.4200b	83-2b		
2-year rat chronic toxicity/carcinogenicity study	870.4300	83-5		
Mouse micronucleus assay	870.5395	84-2		
General Metabolism - rat	870.7485	85-1		
Processed Food/Feed Cottonseed oil and soybean oil processing data are required; otherwise, tolerances of 1 ppm and 2 ppm will be established for cottonseed oil and soybean oil, respectively, based on the maximum residue estimates in these processed commodities.	860.1520	171-41		
Nature of the Residue - Animals Ruminant metabolism data only.	860.1300	81-3		
Multiresidue Methods Recovery data for the metabolite DCMP.	860.1360	171-4m		
Submittal of Analytical Reference Standards Submission of a reasonable amount of the analytical reference standards for DCMP to the Pesticide Repository. Standards for chloroneb and metabolites must be replenished as requested by the Repository.	860.1650	171-13		
Confined Accumulation in Rotational Crops Rotational crop data are required; otherwise, a 12-month plant back interval is required for all unregistered crops.	860.1850	165-1		

Table 13. Data Requirements for the Reregistration Eligibility Decision on Chloroneb					
Guideline Study Name	New OPPTS Guideline No.	Old Guideline No.			
Product Identity and Composition	830.1550	61-1			
Certified Limits	830.1750	62-2			
Stability to Metals	830.6313	63-13			
Oxidation/Reduction	830.6314	63-14			
Explodability	830.6316	63-16			
Storage Stability	830.6317	63.17			
Corrosion Characteristics	830.6320	63-20			
UV/Visible Absorption	830.7050	none			
Vapor Pressure	830.7950	63-9			
Avian Reproduction-Bobwhite quail and Mallard Duck	850.2300	71-4			
Freshwater Fish Acute LC ₅₀ Rainbow Trout and Bluegill Sunfish	850.1075	72-1			
Estuarine/Marine Fish Acute LC 50 (Sheepshead minnow)	850.1075	72-3a			
Estuarine/Marine Acute Invertebrate LC ₅₀ (Mysid shrimp)	850.1035	72-3b			
Estuarine/Marine Acute Invertebrate LC ₅₀ (Mollusk)	850.1025	72-3c			
Daphnid chronic toxicity test	850.1300	72-4			
Fish- early life stage toxicity test	850.1400	72-4			
Mysid chronic toxicity test	850.1350	72-4			
Terrestrial Field Dissipation	835.6100	164-1			

2. Labeling for Technical and Manufacturing End-Use Products

To ensure compliance with FIFRA, technical and manufacturing use products (MP) labeling should be revised to comply with all current EPA regulations, PR Notices and applicable policies. The technical and MP labeling should bear the labeling contained in Table 14 Label Changes Summary Table.

B. End-Use Products

1. Additional Product-Specific Data Requirements

Section 4(g) (2 (B) of FIFRA calls for the Agency to obtain any needed product-specific data regarding the pesticides after a determination of eligibility has been made. The registrant must review previous data submissions to ensure they meet current EPA acceptance criteria and if not, commit to conduct new studies. If a registrant believes that previously submitted data meet current testing standards, then the study MRID numbers should be cited according to the instructions in the Requirement Status and Registrations Response form provided for each product.

A product-specific data call-in, outlining specific data requirements, accompanies this RED.

2. Labeling Requirements for End-Use Products

Labeling changes are necessary to implement the mitigation measures outlined in Section IV above. Specific language to incorporate these changes is specified in Table 14.

a. Labeling Changes Summary Table

In order to be eligible for reregistration, amend all product labels to incorporate the risk mitigation measures outlined in Section IV. Table 14 describes how language on the labels should be amended.

C. Existing Stocks

Existing stocks time frames will be established case by case, depending on the number of products involved, the number of label changes, and other factors. Refer to "Existing Stocks of Pesticide Products; Statement of Policy," Federal Register, Volume 56, No. 123, June 26, 1991.

Table 14: Summary of Labeling Changes for Chloroneb

Label requirements for the following uses may be revised from current labels based on the 21-day dermal toxicity study required by the Agency and included in the chloroneb data call-in: Turf, ornamentals, bedding plants, ferns, and on-farm seed treatment. Until the dermal toxicity study is received by the Agency and risks reevaluated and deemed acceptable, the registrant has agreed to remove these use sites from product labeling.

Description	Amended Labeling Language	Placement on Label
For all Manufacturing Use Products (MUPs)	"Only for formulation into a fungicide for the following use(s) [fill blank only with those uses that are being supported by MUP registrant]."	Directions for Use
	For MUPs intended for seed treatment use: "For use in commercial seed treatment establishments." "Wettable powder end use product formulations must be packaged in water soluble packages."	
One of these statements may be added to a label to allow reformulation of the product for a specific use or all additional uses supported by a formulator or user group	"This product may be used to formulate products for specific use(s) not listed on the MP label if the formulator, user group, or grower has complied with U.S. EPA submission requirements regarding support of such use(s)." "This product may be used to formulate products for any additional use(s) not listed on the MP label if the formulator, user group, or	Directions for Use
	grower has complied with U.S. EPA submission requirements regarding support of such use(s)."	

Environmental Hazards Statements Required by the RED and Agency Label Policies	"Do not discharge effluent containing this product into lakes, streams, ponds, estuaries, oceans, or other waters unless in accordance with the requirements of a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit and the permitting authority has been notified in writing prior to discharge. Do not discharge effluent containing this product to sewer systems without previously notifying the local sewage	Precautionary Statements
	product to sewer systems without previously notifying the local sewage treatment plant authority. For guidance contact your State Water Board or Regional Office of the EPA."	

	End Use Products Intended for Occupational Use				
PPE Requirements Established by the RED for liquid formulations and wettable powder formulations packaged in water soluble packages intended for use in commercial seed treatment	"Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)" "Some materials that are chemical-resistant to this product are" (registrant inserts correct chemical-resistant material). "If you want more options, follow the instructions for category" [registrant inserts A,B,C,D,E,F,G,or H] "on an EPA chemical-resistance category selection chart." "All mixers, loaders, applicators, and other handlers must wear: - long sleeved shirt, long pants - socks plus shoes, - chemical resistant gloves, except for persons participating in bagging and sewing, - and a chemical-resistant apron when mixing/loading, cleaning up spills, cleaning equipment, or otherwise exposed to the concentrate. See engineering controls for additional requirements."	Immediately following/below Precautionary Statements: Hazards to Humans and Domestic Animals			
User Safety Requirements	"Follow manufacturer's instructions for cleaning/maintaining PPE. If no such instructions for washables exist, use detergent and hot water. Keep and wash PPE separately from other laundry."	Precautionary Statements: Hazards to Humans and Domestic Animals immediately following the PPE requirements			

Engineering Controls for
liquid formulations used in
commercial seed treatments

"Engineering Controls

"Mixers and loaders must use a closed system designed by the manufacturer to enclose the pesticide to prevent it from contacting handlers or other people AND the system must be functioning properly and must be used and maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's written operating instructions. In addition, mixers and loaders must:

- wear the personal protective equipment required in the PPE section of this labeling for mixers and loaders,
- wear protective eyewear if the system operates under pressure, and
- be provided, must have immediately available, and must use in an emergency, such as a broken package, spill, or equipment breakdown:
 - chemical-resistant footwear, and
- a NIOSH-approved dust/mist filtering respirator with
 MSHA/NIOSH approval number prefix TC-21C or a NIOSH-approved respirator with any N, R, P or HE filter."

Precautionary Statements:
Hazards to Humans and
Domestic Animals
(Immediately following PPE
and User Safety
Requirements.)

^{*} *Instruction to Registrant*: Drop the "N" type prefilter from the respirator statement if the product contains, or is used with, oil."

Engineering Controls for wettable powder formulations	"Engineering Controls	Precautionary Statements: Hazards to Humans and
packaged in water soluble	Water-soluble packets when used correctly qualify as a closed	Domestic Animals
packets used in commercial	mixing/loading system. Mixers and loaders using water-soluble	immediately following the
seed treatments	packets must:	PPE requirements
	— wear the personal protective equipment specified in the PPE section	
	of this labeling for mixers and loaders, and	
	— be provided, have immediately available, and must use in an	
	emergency, such as a broken package, spill, or equipment breakdown:	
	 chemical-resistant footwear, and 	
	 a NIOSH-approved dust/mist filtering respirator with 	
	MSHA/NIOSH approval number prefix TC-21C or a NIOSH-approved	
	respirator with any N, R, P or HE filter."	
	* Instruction to Registrant: Drop the "N" type prefilter from the	
	respirator statement if the product contains, or is used with, oil."	
User Safety	"User Safety Recommendations	Precautionary Statements
Recommendations		under: Hazards to Humans
	Users should wash hands before eating, drinking, chewing gum, using	and Domestic Animals
	tobacco, or using the toilet.	immediately following
		Engineering Controls
	Users should remove clothing/PPE immediately if pesticide gets inside.	
	Then wash thoroughly and put on clean clothing.	(Must be placed in a box.)
	Users should remove PPE immediately after handling this product.	
	Wash the outside of gloves before removing. As soon as possible,	
	wash thoroughly and change into clean clothing."	

Environmental Hazards for products used in seed treatments	"Environmental Hazards" "This product is toxic to aquatic organisms. Do not contaminate water when cleaning equipment or disposing of equipment wash-waters."	Precautionary Statements under Environmental Hazards
General Application Restrictions	"Do not apply this product in a way that will contact workers or other persons, either directly or through drift. Only protected handlers may be in the area during application."	Place in the Direction for Use directly above the Agricultural Use Box.

Application Restrictions for products used for seed	For seed treatments:	Directions for Use under General Precautions and
treatments	"Seed that has been treated with this product that is then packaged or bagged for future use must contain the following labeling on the outside of the seed package or bag:"	Restrictions and/or Application Instructions
	– "This bag contains seed treated with chloroneb. Persons opening this bag or loading/pouring the treated seed must wear long-sleeved shirt, long pants, shoes, socks, chemical resistant gloves, and a NIOSH-approved respirator with a dust/mist filter with MSHA/NIOSH approval number prefix TC 21C, <i>or</i> any N*, R, P, or He filter."	
	- "Treated Seed - Do Not Use for Food, Feed, or Oil Purposes."	
	- "After seeds have been planted, do not enter or allow worker entry into treated areas during the restricted entry interval (REI) of 12 hours. Exception: Once seeds are planted in soil or other planting media, the Worker Protection Standard allows workers to enter the treated area without restriction if there will be no contact with the soil/media subsurface."	
	* <i>Instruction to Registrant</i> : Drop the "N" type prefilter from the respirator statement if the product contains, or is used with, oil.	

VI. APPENDICES

Appendix A: CHLORONEB USE PATTERNS ELIGIBLE FOR REREGISTRATION

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS	LIMITATIONS					
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)	
BEANS	Do not apply direct intertidal areas below Do not apply throut Do not contaminate Do not contaminate waters. Do not contaminate Do not discharge extuaries, oceans, or public was Do not use in home Do not use treated This product is tox Seed Treatment Applications.	45 day(s) pregrazing interval. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate food or feed. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not discharge effluent containing this product into lakes, streams, ponds,					
At planting Seed treatment Seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	NS		
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS					
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)
BEANS, DRIED-TYPE	45 day(s) pregrazing interval. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes. For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Seed Treatment Application rates are not to exceed 7.8 oz AI/cwt seed of cotton or 3.0 oz AI/cwt on beans, soybeans or sugar beets.					
At planting Seed treatment Drill box/Planter/seed box	0.1586 lb cwt NS NS 12 h					
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	
BEANS, SUCCULENT (LIMA)	45 day(s) pregrazing interval. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark.					

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS	LIMITATIONS					
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)	
	Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes. For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Seed Treatment Application rates are not to exceed 7.8 oz AI/cwt seed of cotton or 3.0 oz AI/cwt on beans, soybeans or sugar beets.						
At planting Seed treatment Drill box/Planter/seed box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
BEANS, SUCCULENT (SNAP)	45 day(s) pregrazing interval. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal.						

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS						
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)	
	For terrestrial uses, present or to intertion	Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes. For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark.					
	Seed Treatment Ap or 3.0 oz AI/cwt or	-			oz AI/cv	vt seed of cotton	
At planting Seed treatment Drill box/Planter/seed box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
COTTON (UNSPECIFIED)	Do not apply direct intertidal areas belo Do not apply throug Do not contaminate Do not contaminate waters. Do not contaminate waters. Do not contaminate bo not discharge effectuaries,	Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not discharge effluent containing this product into lakes, streams, ponds,					

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS					
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)
	Do not use in homes Do not use treated se For terrestrial uses, of present or to intertida This product is highly This product is toxic Seed Treatment App or 3.0 oz AI/cwt on to Geographic disallowa	eed for feed, for do not apply of all areas below y toxic to bird to fish. lication rates beans, soybeans,	the mean hals, fish, and	vater or to nigh water other wile xceed 7.8	mark. dlife.	
At planting Seed treatment Drill box/Hopper box/Planter/seed box/Seed treater	0.39875 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	
Preplant Seed treatment/Slurry Hopper box	0.3852 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	Geographic allowable: East of Rocky Mtns West of Rocky Mtns
Seed Seed treatment/Slurry Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.3852 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	Geographic allowable: East of Rocky Mtns West of Rocky Mtns
When needed Seed treatment Hopper box/Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	Geographic allowable: TX
COWPEA/BLACKEYED PEA	45 day(s) pregrazing	interval.	1	1	ı	1

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS					
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)
	Do not apply directly intertidal areas below Do not apply through Do not contaminate waters. Do not contaminate waters. Do not use treated se For terrestrial uses, depresent or to intertidate	the mean hig any type of vater by clear vater, food, o ed for feed, fo o not apply o	gh water ma irrigation syning of equi- or feed by st food or oil p lirectly to w	rk. estem. pment or orage or ourposes. eater or to	disposal o disposal. areas wh	of equipment wash
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	
COWPEAS	45 day(s) pregrazing interval. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes.					
At planting Seed treatment	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS						
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)	
Drill box/Planter/seed box							
LUPINE	45 day(s) pregrazing interval. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes. For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark.						
At planting Seed treatment Drill box/Planter/seed box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h		
LUPINE, GRAIN	45 day(s) pregrazing interval. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash						

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS							
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)		
	Do not use treated a For terrestrial uses,	waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes. For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark.						
At planting Seed treatment Drill box/Planter/seed box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h			
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h			
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h			
SOYBEANS (UNSPECIFIED)	Do not apply direct intertidal areas belo Do not apply throug Do not contaminate waters. Do not contaminate Do not use treated For terrestrial uses,	Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes. For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is						
	present or to intertion	dal areas belo	w the mean	high water	r mark.			

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS							
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)		
	•	Seed Treatment Application rates are not to exceed 7.8 oz AI/cwt seed of cotton or 3.0 oz AI/cwt on beans, soybeans or sugar beets.						
At planting Seed treatment Drill box/Planter/seed box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h			
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h			
Seed Seed treatment Mist-type seed treater/Slurry-type seed treater	0.1586 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h			
SOYBEANS, EDIBLE	45 day(s) pregrazing Do not use treated Seed Treatment Approx or 3.0 oz AI/cwt or	seed for feed, to oplication rates	are not to e	xceed 7.8	oz AI/cw	vt seed of cotton		
Seed Seed treatment Slurry-type seed treater	0.1031 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	NS			
SUGAR BEET	intertidal areas belo Do not apply throu Do not contaminate waters.	Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not apply through any type of irrigation system. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal.						

SITE NAME	LIMITATIONS					
Application Timing (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Type (for any Reg.# at any rate) Application Equipment (for any Reg.# at any rate)	Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site	Max. Seasonal Rate	Max. # Apps/ cc & yr	MRI	REI	PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg. #s)
	Do not use treated seed for feed, food or oil purposes. For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark.					
	Seed Treatment Apple or 3.0 oz AI/cwt on b				oz Al/cw	t seed of cotton
Preplant Seed treatment Hopper box	0.1767 lb cwt	NS	NS	NS	12 h	
GOLF COURSE TURF	Restrict use on turf to fairways, as well a Limit the number of lb ai/A and 2 applica	as profession applications	nal athletic is on golf co	turf (foot	ball, base	ball fields, etc.).
	Limit maximum use per year on golf courses to 60 lb ai/acre/year. Require a minimum retreatment interval of 14 days for golf course tees, greens, and aprons, and professional athletic fields. Do not apply directly to water, or to areas where surface water is present or to intertidal areas below the mean high water mark. Do not contaminate water by cleaning of equipment or disposal of equipment wash waters. Do not contaminate water, food, or feed by storage or disposal. Do not graze or feed clippings from treated areas to livestock.					
Foliar Broadcast Spreader	.1861 lb 1K sq.ft	NS	60 lb ai/acre/y	14	NS	

Seedling stage Broadcast Spreader	.1861 lb 1K sq. ft	NS	60 lb ai/acre/y	14	NS			
ORNAMENTAL HERBACEOUS PLANTS	Do not graze treate	ed areas or us	se clippings fro	m treate	d areas fo	r feed or forage.		
						nere surface water is		
	present or to interti	idai areas bei	ow the mean h	ign wate	r mark.	Г		
Foliar Chemigation/Spray Overhead sprinkler irrigation/Solid set irrigation/Sprayer	3.9 lb A	NS	NS NS	30	12 h			
When needed Soil drench treatment Drencher	.001162 lb pot	NS	NS NS	NS	12 h			
ORNAMENTAL NONFLOWERING PLANTS	Do not graze treate					r feed or forage. nere surface water is		
	present or to interti							
Foliar Chemigation/Spray Overhead sprinkler irrigation/Solid set irrigation/Sprayer	3.9 lb A	NS	NS NS	30	12 h			
When needed Soil drench treatment Drencher	.001162 lb pot	NS	NS NS	NS	12 h			
ORNAMENTAL WOODY SHRUBS AND VINES	Do not graze treate	ed areas or us	se clippings fro	m treate	d areas fo	r feed or forage.		
	For terrestrial uses	For terrestrial uses, do not apply directly to water or to areas where surface water is						
	present or to interti	idal areas bel	ow the mean h	igh wate	r mark.			

Foliar Chemigation/Spray Overhead sprinkler irrigation/Solid set irrigation/Sprayer	3.9 lb A	NS	NS NS	30	12 h	
When needed Soil drench treatment Drencher	.001162 lb pot	NS	NS NS	NS	12 h	

PRODUCT NUMBERS CONTAINED IN THIS TABLE

 $002217-00692,\ 009198-00182,\ 009198-00204,\ 073782-00003,\ 001381-00166,\ 001381-00183,\ 002935-00413,\ 002935-00414,\ 007501-00068,\ 051036-00258,\ 073782-00002,\ 073782-00004$

HEADER ABBREVIATIONS

Site Name - The site name refers to the entity (crop, building, surface or article) where a pesticide is applied and/or which is being protected.

Limitations - Precautionary statements related to the use of the product(s).

Application Timing - The timing of pesticide application and is the primary application sort (not aggregated).

Application Type - The type of pesticide application (aggregated).

Application Equipment - The equipment used to apply pesticide (aggregated).

Max. Single Appl. Rate to a Single Site - Maximum Dose for a single application to a single site. System calculated.

Max Seasonal Rate - The maximum amount of pesticide that can be applied to a site in one growing season (/cc) and during the span of one year (/yr).

Max. # Apps/cc & yr - Maximum Number of Applications per crop cycle and per year.

M R I - Minimum Retreatment Interval (days) (at any rate). The minimum interval between pesticide application (days).

R E I - ReEntry Interval - The minimum amount of time that must elapse before workers can reenter a treated area.

PHI/PGI/PSI Use Limitations (May not apply to all Reg.#s) - Preharvest/Pregrazing/Preslaughter Interval use limitations pertinent to the application.

Current As Of: - The label data for the listed products in this report is current of this date.

ABBREVIATIONS

AN - As needed

NA - Not Applicable

NS - Not Specified (on label)

(L) - The dosage information provided is from the label in terms of product (e.g., ounces, gallons, or pounds of the product) because there was insufficient

information (e.g., missing density, area, or active ingredient percentages) to provide converted dosage information. This report provides active ingredient

percentage in the product for the reported chemical for all unconverted label dosage information if this information is available. This active ingredient

percentage information is displayed next to the form code abbreviations (e.g., 80% WP).

APPLICATION RATE

cwt : Hundred Weight

nnE-xx: nn times (10 power -xx), for instance, "1.234E-04" is equivalent to ".0001234"

Appendix B.

TABLE OF GENERIC DATA REQUIREMENTS AND STUDIES USED TO MAKE THE REREGISTRATION DECISION

GUIDE TO APPENDIX B

Appendix B contains listing of data requirements which support the reregistration for active ingredients within case #0007 (chloroneb) covered by this RED. It contains generic data requirements that apply to chloroneb in all products, including data requirements for which a "typical formulation" is the test substance.

The data table is organized in the following formats:

- 1. <u>Data Requirement</u> (Column 1). The data requirements are listed in the order in which they appear in 40 CFR part 158. The reference numbers accompanying each test refer to the test protocols set in the Pesticide Assessment Guidance, which are available from the National technical Information Service, 5285 Port Royal Road, Springfield, VA 22161 (703) 487-4650.
- 2. <u>Use Pattern</u> (Column 2). This column indicates the use patterns for which the data requirements apply. The following letter designations are used for the given use patterns.
 - A. Terrestrial food
 - B. Terrestrial feed
 - C. Terrestrial non-food
 - D. Aquatic food
 - E. Aquatic non-food outdoor
 - F. Aquatic non-food industrial

- G. Aquatic non-food residential
- H. Greenhouse food
- I. Greenhouse non-food
- J. Forestry
- K. Residential
- L. Indoor food
- M. Indoor non-food
- N. Indoor medical
- O. Indoor residential
- 3. <u>Bibliographic Citation</u> (Column 3). If the Agency has acceptable data in its files, this column list the identify number of each study. This normally is the Master Record Identification (MIRD) number, but may be a "GS" number if no MRID number has been assigned. Refer to the Bibliography appendix for a complete citation of the study.

Data Supporting Guideline Requirements for the Reregistration of Chloroneb Appendix B. **Old Guideline New Guideline** Requirement Use Pattern **Bibliographic Citation(s)** Number Number PRODUCT CHEMISTRY 830.1550 61-1 **Product Identity and Composition** A,B,C,K 43146602, Data Gap Start. Mat. & Mfg. Process 830.1600 61-2a A,B,C,K43146602 61-2b **Description of Production Process** A,B,C,K 00098323, 43146602 830.1620 Discussion of Impurities 830.1670 61-2b A,B,C,K43146602 830.1700 62-1 Preliminary Analysis A,B,C,K 43352401 830.1750 62-2 Certification of limits A,B,C,K 43352402, Data Gap 830.1800 Analytical Method 43146603 62-3 A,B,C,K830.6302 63-2 Color A,B,C,K 43553701 A,B,C,K830.6303 63-3 Physical State 43553702 A,B,C,K830.6304 63-4 Odor 43553703 43301106, Data Gap 830.6313 63-13 Stability - temp and ions A,B,C,K830.6314 63-14 Oxidation and Reduction A,B,C,K 43553700, Data Gap 63-15 A,B,C,K 43553700 830.6315 Flammability A,B,C,KExplodability 43553700, Data Gap 830.6316 63-16 Storage stability 830.6317 A,B,C,K 63.17 Data Gap 830.6319 63-19 Miscibility A,B,C,K 43553700 Corrosion Characteristics 43553700, Data Gap 830.6320 63-20 A,B,C,K43553700 830.7000 63-12 pН A,B,C,K

Appendix B.	Data Supp	oorting Guideline Require	ements for th	ne Reregistration of Chloroneb
New Guideline Number	Old Guideline Number	Requirement	Use Pattern	Bibliographic Citation(s)
830.7050	none	UV/Visible absorption	A,B,C,K	Data Gap
830.7100	63-18	Viscosity	A,B,C,K	43553700
830.7200	63-5	Melting point/melting range	A,B,C,K	43553704
830.7220	63-6	Boiling point/range	A,B,C,K	43553700
830.7300	63-7	Density	A,B,C,K	43301102
830.7370	63-10	Dissociation Constants in Water	A,B,C,K	43301104
830.7550	63-11	Partial Coefficient, shake flask method	A,B,C,K	43301105
830.7840 830.7860	63-8	Water Solubility	A,B,C,K	43301103
830.7950	63-9	Vapor Pressure	A,B,C,K	0000144, 43553700, Data Gap
	ı	EC	OLOGICAL EF	FECTS
850.2100	71-1	Avian Acute Toxicology	A,B,C,K	00001425, 00077314
850-2200	71-2	Avian Subacute Dietary	A,B,C,K	00021873, 00021874
850.1075	72-1	Fish Acute Toxicity	A,B,C,K	43156801
850.1400	72-4	Fish- Early Life Stage	A,B,C,K	00021875, Data Gap
850.2300	71-4	Avian reproduction test	A,B,C,K	Data Gap
850.1075	72-3a	Estuarine/Marine Fish Acute LC50 (sheepshead minnow)	A,B,C,K	Data Gap

Appendix B.	Data Supp	oorting Guideline Require	ments for th	e Reregistration of Chloroneb			
New Guideline Number	Old Guideline Number	Requirement	Use Pattern	Bibliographic Citation(s)			
850.1035	72-3b	Estuarine/Marine Fish Acute LC50 (mysid shrimp)	A,B,C,K	Data Gap			
850.1025	72-3c	Estuarine/Marine Fish Acute LC50 (mollusk)		Data Gap			
850.1300	72-4	Daphnid chronic toxicity test	A,B,C,K	Data Gap			
850.1350	72-4	Mysid chronic toxicity test	A,B,C,K	Data Gap			
	OCCUPATIONAL/RESIDUE EXPOSURE						
875.2100 and 875.2200	132-1a and b	Dissipation of Dislodgeable Foliar and Soil Residues	A,B,C,K	Data Gap			
875.2400	133-3	Dermal Passive Dosimetry Exposure	A,B,C,K	Data Gap			
875.2500	133-4	Inhalation Passive Dosimetry Exposure	A,B,C,K	Data Gap			
			TOXICOLOG	GY			
870.1100	81-1	Acute Oral Toxicity-Rat	A,B,C,K	00032544			
870.1200	81-2	Acute Dermal Toxicity-Rabbit/Rat	A,B,C,K	00093893			
870.1300	81-3	Acute Inhalation Toxicity-Rat	A,B,C,K	00004982			
870.2400	81-4	Primary Eye Irritation-Rabbit	A,B,C,K	00004983			
870.2500	81-5	Primary Skin Irritation	A,B,C,K	00032544			
870.2600	81-6	Dermal Sensitization	A,B,C,K	00063019			

Data Supporting Guideline Requirements for the Reregistration of Chloroneb Appendix B. **Old Guideline New Guideline** Requirement Use Pattern **Bibliographic Citation(s)** Number Number 870.3100 82-1a 90-Day Feeding - Rodent A,B,C,K 00001446 870.3200 82-2 21-Day Dermal - Rabbit/Rat A,B,C,K **Data Gap 0001445** ? 870.3465 90-day inhalation A,B,C,K Data Gap 870.4100 83-1a Chronic Feeding Toxicity - Rodent A,B,C,K Reserved 870.4100b 83-1b Chronic Feeding Toxicity - Dog 00001421 A,B,C,K870.4200b 83-2a Oncogenicity - mouse A,B,C,K Data Gap Developmental Toxicity 870.3700a 83-3a A,B,C,K 00131472, 42482401 (Teratogenicity) - rat Developmental Toxicity 870.3700b 83-3b A,B,C,K40711302 (Teratogenicity) - rabbit 2-Generation Reproduction - Rat A,B,C,K 870.3800 83-4 00001423, 00131471, Data Gap Combined Chronic Toxicity/ 870.4300 83-5 A,B,C,K 00001422, 00093887, Data Gap Carcinogenicity 870.5265 A,B,C,K 00093888 Gene Mutation - Ames Assay Mutagenicity - Structural chrom. 870.5395 A,B,C,KData Gap aberration Gene Mutation - Mouse Lymphoma 870.5375 A, B, C, K 43301101 Chinese hamster ovary/forward gene A,B,C,K 870.5375 00093890 mutation assay

A,B,C,K

A.B.C.K

00104246

00093889

Unscheduled DNA synthesis

in vitro Cytogenetic assay

870.5550 870.5900

Appendix B.	Appendix B. Data Supporting Guideline Requirements for the Reregistration of Chloroneb									
New Guideline Number	Old Guideline Number	Requirement	Use Pattern	Bibliographic Citation(s)						
870.7485		General metabolism- rat	A,B,C,K	Data Gap						
	ENVIRONMENTAL FATE									
835.2120	161-1	Hydrolysis	A,B,C,K	GS-0007-6						
835.2240	161-2	Photodegradation - Water	A,B,C,K	43593501						
835.4100	162-1	Aerobic Soil Metabolism	A,B,C,K	43670901						
835.1240	163-1	Leaching/Adsorption/Desorption	A,B,C,K	43146601						
835.1100	164-1	Terrestrial Field Dissipation	A,B,C,K	Data Gap						
		RE	SIDUE CHEMI	ISTRY						
860.1200		Directions for Use								
860.1300	171-4a	Nature of Residue in Plants	A,B,C,K	00001407, 00001430, 00002218, 05001134, 05001158, 05001172, 05001181, 05001297, 05001302, 05001304, 43512701, 44643301, 44916801, GS0007-013						
860.1300	171-4b	Nature of Residue in Livestock	A,B,C,K	Data Gap						
860.1340	171-4c	Residue Analytical Method - plant	A,B,C,K	00001429, 00001434						
860.1340	171-4d	Residue Analytical Method - livestock	A,B,C,K	00001429, 00001431						
860.1360	171-4m	Multiple Residue Methods	A,B,C,K	Data Gap						
860.1480	171-4j	Residues on Meat/Milk/Poultry/Egg	A,B,C,K	00001424, 00001431, 00002214, 05001156, 05001159						
860.1500	171-4k	Cropfield Residue (beet, sugar)	A,B,C,K	00001412						
860.1500	171-4k	Cropfield Residue (beet, sugar, tops)	A.B.C.K	00001412						

Appendix B. Data Supporting Guideline Requirements for the Reregistration of Chloroneb

New Guideline Number	Old Guideline Number	Requirement	Use Pattern	Bibliographic Citation(s)
860.1500	171-4k	Cropfield Residue (Bean)	A,B,C,K	00001412
860.1500	171-4k	Cropfield Residue (Soybean, seed & aspirated grain fractions)	A,B,C,K	00001412
860.1500	171-4k	Cropfield Residue (Bean, forage & hay)	A,B,C,K	00001412
860.1500	171-4k	Cropfield Residue (Soybean, forage & hay)	A,B,C,K	00001412
860.1500	171-K	Miscellaneous Commodities (Cotton, seed and gin byproducts)	A,B,C,K	00001412, 00001434
860.1520	171-4 L	Processed Food/Feed (Beet, sugar)	A,B,C,K	00001412, 00131470
860.1520	171-4 L	Processed Food/Feed (Cotton)	A,B,C,K	44643301, Data Gap
860.1520	171-4 L	Processed Food/Feed (Soybean)	A,B,C,K	44643301, Data Gap
860.1650	171-13	Submission of Analytical Reference Standards	A,B,C,K	Data Gap
860.1850	165-1	Confined Accumulation in Rotational Crops	A,B,C,K	Data Gap

Appendix C: Technical Support Documents

Additional documentation in support of this RED is maintained in the OPP docket, located in Room 119, Crystal Mall #2, 1801 S. Bell St., Arlington, VA. It is open Monday through Friday, excluding legal holidays, from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

The docket initially contained preliminary risk assessments and related documents as of January 26, 2004. Sixty days later the first public comment period closed. The EPA then considered comments, revised the risk assessment, and added the formal "Response to Comments" documents and the revised risk assessments to the docket on July 2, 2004. Following a third 60-day comment period, EPA further revised the EFED risk assessment, and added formal "Response to Comments" documents.

All documents, in hard copy form, may be viewed in the OPP docket room or downloaded or viewed via the Internet at the following site:

http://docket.epa.gov/edkpub/index.jsp

These documents include:

Phase 4: Risk Mitigation for Occupational Exposure to Chloroneb in Commercial Seed Treatment Scenarios. September 26, 2005.

Revised Occupational Postapplication Exposure Risk Assessment for Chloroneb. September 29, 2005.

Chloroneb: Characterization of Potential Carcinogenic Risk from Dietary Exposure. September 21, 2005.

Request for Additional Information and Suggestions for the Reregistration of Chloroneb Phase 3 Public Comment Period.

Readers's Guide to the Chloroneb E-Docket.

Overview of Chloroneb Risk Assessments. May 25, 2005

Chloroneb: HED Chapter of the Reregistration Eligibility Decision Document. December 30, 2004.

Chloroneb: Toxicology Disciplinary Chapter for the Reregistration Eligibility Decision Document. January 6, 2004.

Chloroneb: 1st Report of the Hazard Identification Assessment Review Committee. December 18, 2003.

Chloroneb: Product Chemistry Considerations for Reregistration Eligibility Decision. December 21, 2004.

Chloroneb: Residue Chemistry Considerations for Reregistration Eligibility Decision. December 21, 2004.

Chloroneb: Chronic Dietary Exposure Assessment for the Reregistration Eligibility Decision. December 21, 2004.

Tier 1 Drinking Water Exposure Assessment for Chloroneb. November 15, 2004.

Ecological Risk Assessment for the Reregistration of Chloroneb. December 31, 2004.

Review of Chloroneb Incident Report. May 18, 2004.

Response to Registrant's Comments on the Phase 3 Period of the Chloroneb RED Ecological Chapter. August 15, 2005

Chloroneb: Health Effects Division (HED) Response to the Phase 3 Public Comments on the HED Chapter of the Chloroneb Reregistration Eligibility Decision Document (RED). August 18, 2005

Appendix D. CITATIONS CONSIDERED TO BE PART OF THE DATA BASE SUPPORTING THE REREGISTRATION DECISION (BIBLIOGRAPHY)

GUIDE TO APPENDIX D

- CONTENTS OF BIBLIOGRAPHY. This bibliography contains citations of all studies
 considered relevant by EPA in arriving at the positions and conclusions stated elsewhere in the
 Reregistration Eligibility Document. Primary sources for studies in this bibliography have been
 the body of data submitted to EPA and its predecessor agencies in support of past regulatory
 decisions. Selections from other sources including the published literature, in those instances
 where they have been considered, are included.
- 2. UNITS OF ENTRY. The unit of entry in this bibliography is called a "study." In the case of published materials, this corresponds closely to an article. In the case of unpublished materials submitted to the Agency, the Agency has sought to identify documents at a level parallel to the published article from within the typically larger volumes in which they were submitted. The resulting "studies" generally have a distinct title (or at least a single subject), can stand alone for purposes of review and can be described with a conventional bibliographic citation. The Agency has also attempted to unite basic documents and commentaries upon them, treating them as a single study.
- 3. IDENTIFICATION OF ENTRIES. The entries in this bibliography are sorted numerically by Master Record Identifier, or "MRID" number. This number is unique to the citation, and should be used whenever a specific reference is required. It is not related to the six-digit "Accession Number" which has been used to identify volumes of submitted studies (see paragraph 4(d)(4) below for further explanation). In a few cases, entries added to the bibliography late in the review may be preceded by a nine character temporary identifier. These entries are listed after all MRID entries. This temporary identifying number is also to be used whenever specific reference is needed.
- 4. FORM OF ENTRY. In addition to the Master Record Identifier (MRID), each entry consists of a citation containing standard elements followed, in the case of material submitted to EPA, by a description of the earliest known submission. Bibliographic conventions used reflect the standard of the American National Standards Institute (ANSI), expanded to provide for certain special needs.
 - a Author. Whenever the author could confidently be identified, the Agency has chosen to show a personal author. When no individual was identified, the Agency has shown an identifiable laboratory or testing facility as the author. When no author or laboratory could be identified, the Agency has shown the first submitter as the author.

- b. Document date. The date of the study is taken directly from the document. When the date is followed by a question mark, the bibliographer has deduced the date from the evidence contained in the document. When the date appears as (1999), the Agency was unable to determine or estimate the date of the document.
- c. Title. In some cases, it has been necessary for the Agency bibliographers to create or enhance a document title. Any such editorial insertions are contained between square brackets.
- (44) Trailing parentheses. For studies submitted to the Agency in the past, the trailing parentheses include (in addition to any self-explanatory text) the following elements describing the earliest known submission:
- (1) Submission date. The date of the earliest known submission appears immediately following the word "received."
- (2) Administrative number. The next element immediately following the word "under" is the registration number, experimental use permit number, petition number, or other administrative number associated with the earliest known submission.
- (3) Submitter. The third element is the submitter. When authorship is defaulted to the submitter, this element is omitted.
- (4) Volume Identification (Accession Numbers). The final element in the trailing parentheses identifies the EPA accession number of the volume in which the original submission of the study appears. The six-digit accession number follows the symbol "CDL," which stands for "Company Data Library." This accession number is in turn followed by an alphabetic suffix which shows the relative position of the study within the volume.

MRID CITATION

1407	Rhodes, R.C. (1968?) Chemical Identification of Metabolites of Chloroneb in Bean Plants (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-B)
1408	Hock, W.K.; Sisler, H.D. (1968) Metabolic Detoxification of Chloro- neb (1,4-Dichloro-2,5-Dimethoxybenzene) by~Rhizoctonia~~?solani~?. (Unpublished paper presented at the 25th Annual Meeting of Potamac ?sic Division, American Phytopathological Society; Mar 27, 1968; available from author, Univ. of Maryland, College Park, Md., received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-C)
1409	Rhodes, R.C. (1968?) Determination of 2,5-Dichlorohydroquinone and 2,5-Dichloroquinone Residues in Cow Urine. Undated method. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-E)
1410	E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1968) ChromatogramsSugar Beets. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-F)
1411	E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1968) ?Residue Data: Chloroneb . (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-G)
1412	E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1967) Results of Tests on the Amount of Residue in Crops Grown in ?Chloroneb Treated Soil. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-I)
1413	E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1967) ?Demosan Efficacy Studies . (Unpublished study including letter dated Sep 15, 1965 from R.E. Worley to Robert Sutton, received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-J)
1414	Goode, M.J. (1965) Rhizoctonia root and stem rot of beans. Arkansas Farm Research ?(?/Sep-Oct):7. (Also~In~unpublished submission received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-K)
1415	?E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated? (1965) Phytopath Tests–1965: Vol. 21p. 57-60. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-L)
1416	Natti, J.J. (1965) Fungicide Treatments of Soil for Control of Bean Root Rots. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; prepared by New York State Agricultural Station, Dept. of Plant Pathology, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-M)
1417	E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1966?) ?Demosan Efficacy Studies on Beans . (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-N)

- ?E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated? (1966) Phytopath Tests–1966: Vol. 22--p.56,59;57,58. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-O)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1966?) ?Demosan Efficacy Studies on Peas, Soybeans and Sugarbeets|. (Unpub- lished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-P)
- Fielding, M.J.; Rhodes, R.C. (1967) Studies with C^14I Labeled Chloroneb Fungicide in Plants. (Unpublished paper presented at Beltwide Cotton Production--Mechanization Conference; Jan 9-13, 1967; Dallas, Tex.; received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-Q)
- Busey, W.M.; Kundzins, W. (1967) Two Year Dietary Feeding--Dogs: Fungicide 1823: Final Report: Project No. 201-125. (Unpub- lished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; prepared by Hazleton Laboratories, Inc., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091147-A)
- Busey, W.M.; Crews, L.M.; Kundzins, W. (1967) 24-Month Dietary Feeding--Rats: Fungicide 1823: Final Report: Project No. 201- 124. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; prepared by Hazleton Laboratories, Inc., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091147-B)
- Kundzin, T. (1967) Three-Generation Reproduction Study: Fungicide 1823: Final Report: Project No. 201-126. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; prepared by Hazleton Laboratories, Inc., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091147-C)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1967) Chloroneb—Chronic Feeding Studies: Tissues Analysis--Dogs, Rats. (Unpub- lished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091147-D)
- Dieterich, W.H. (1965) Fungicide 1823 (1, 4-Dichloro-2, 5-Dimeth- oxybenzene): Acute Oral Toxicity to Mallard Ducks and Bobwhite Quail: Project No. 201-154. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091147-H)
- Rhodes, R.C. (1968) Disappearance of C-14I-Ring-Labeled Chloroneb from Soil. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091147-J)
- Rhodes, R.C. (1968?) Disappearance of 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-Dimethoxy- benzene from Soil. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091147-K)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1967) Name, Chemi- cal Identity, and Composition: ?Chloroneb|. (Unpublished study received Oct 16, 1967 under 8F0657; CDL:092951-F)

- Pease, H.L. (1967) Determination of residues of Chloroneb and a metabolite by microcoulometric gas chromatography. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 15(5):917-919. Undated method. (Also~In~unpublished submission received Oct 16, 1967 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:092951-G)
- Rhodes, R.C. (1968?) Studies with C^14I Ring-Labeled Chloroneb in Bean Plants. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-T)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1967) Chloroneb Livestock Feeding Studies: Milk and Meat. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-U)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1965?) Method for Determining Residues of 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-Dimethoxybenzene. (Unpublished study received Jul 7, 1965 under unknown admin. no.; CDL:120886-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1965) Data Sup- porting Use of "Demosan" 65W and "Demosan" 10D Fungicides for Control of Seedling Diseases in Cotton. (Unpublished study including exhibits A-F, received Jul 7, 1965 under 352-312; CDL:026702-A)
- Zapp, J.A., Jr. (1965) Toxicological Information: 1,4-Dichloro-2, 5-Dimethoxybenzene.
 (Unpublished study received Jul 7, 1965 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:050034-A)
- 1438 E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1965) 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-Dimethoxybenzene: Acute Toxicity--fish. (Unpublished study received Jul 7, 1965 under 352-312; CDL:050833-B)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1965) Supplemental Toxicological Information: 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-Dimethoxybenzene, Technical. (Unpublished study received Jul 7, 1965 under 352-312; CDL:050833-C)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1974) Data Sup- porting the Use of Demosan^(R)I 65W Chloroneb Fungicide at the Rate of 10 Oz. per 100 Lbs. of Cottonseed West of the Rocky Mountains. (Unpublished study received Sep 5, 1974 under 352- 312; CDL:002466-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1969) Data Supporting Use of Chloroneb-Disulfoton Granules in Cotton. (Unpublished study received Oct 15, 1969 under 352-312; CDL: 002949-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1972) Data Supporting the Use of "Demosan" 65W Chloroneb Fungicide at the Reduced Rate of 6 Ozs. per 100 Lbs. of Cottonseed. (Unpub- lished study received Nov 6, 1972 under 352-312; CDL:002950-A)

- Rhodes, R.C. (1965) Supplemental Data: "Demosan" 65W and "Demosan" 10 D Fungicides: Disappearance from Soil. (Unpublished study received Sep 1, 1965 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:120427-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1977) "Demosan" 65W Fungicide: Product Chemistry. Includes method dated Oct 15, 1976 and undated method. (Unpublished study received May 27, 1977 under 352-312; CDL:232274-A)
- Hood, D.B. (1965) Fifteen-Exposure Dermal Study with 1,4-Dichloro- 2,5-Dimethoxybenzene: Report No. 106-65. (Unpublished study received Oct 27, 1965 under 352-313; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del,; CDL:050831-B)
- Sherman, H. (1964) Ninety-Day Feeding Study with 1,4-Dichloro-2, 5-Dimethoxybenzene (INK-1823): Report No. 81-64. (Unpublished study received Oct 27, 1965 under 352-313; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:050831-C)
- Paulus, A.O.; Shibuya, F.; Osgood, J.; DeWolfe, T.; Cudney, D.; House, J. (1970) Controlling Rhizoctonia seedling disease of cotton in Southern California. California Agriculture? (?/ Aug):12-14. (Also~In~unpublished submission received Sep 5, 1974 under 352-312, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002466-B)
- Paulus, A.O. (1972) Cotton Seedling Trial--Rhizoctonia. (Unpublished study including letter dated Jun 29, 1972 from A.O. Paulus to Bill Reische, received Sep 5, 1974 under 352-312; prepared by Univ. of California--Riverside, Agricultural Extension Service, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002466-G)
- Rhodes, R.C.; Belasco, I.J.; Pease, H.L. (1970) Determination of Mobility and Adsorption of Agrichemicals on Soils. Undated method. (Unpublished study received Feb 17, 1970 under 352- 324; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002972-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1972) Data Supporting Use of Tersan^(R)I SP-G Turf Fungicide for the Con- trol of Snow Mold (Typhula). (Unpublished study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; CDL:003093-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1972) Data Sup- porting the Use of Demosan^(R)I T Seed Fungicide as a Cottonseed Treatment. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1975) Data Supporting the Use of "Demosan" T Seed Fungicide on Beans. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; CDL:221888-A)
- Cole, H.; Massie, L.B.; Fulton, D.; Duich, J.M. (1971?) Crop: Colonial Bentgrass (~?Agrostis tenuis~?): Snow Molds (~?Typhula itoana, Fusarium nivale~?). (Unpublished

- study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; prepared by Pennsylvania State Univ., Dept. of Plant Pathology and Dept. of Agronomy, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-C)
- Cole, H.; Massie, L.B.; Fulton, D.; Duich, J.M. (1971?) Crop: Creeping Bentgrass (~?Agrostis palustris~?): Snow Molds (~?Typhula itoana, Fusarium nivale~?). (Unpublished study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; prepared by Pennsylvania State Univ., Dept. of Plant Pathology and Dept. of Agronomy, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc.; Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-D)
- Vargas, J.M., Jr.; Beard, J.B. (1970) Chloroneb, a new fungicide for the control of typhula blight. Plant Disease Reporter 54 (12):1075-1077. (Also~In~unpublished submission received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-E)
- Vargas, J.M.; Beard, J.B. (1971?) Comparison of Application Dates for Control of Typhula Blight. (Unpublished study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; prepared by Michigan Agricultural Experiment Station, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-F)
- Worf, G.L.; Ahrens, R.W. (1971) Results of 1970-71 (Typhula) Snow Mold Trials in Wisconsin. (Unpublished study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; prepared by Univ. of Wisconsin, Dept. of Plant Pathology, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-G)
- Toro Research and Development Center (1970) Snow Mold Trials, 1969- 70: ?Tersan|. (Unpublished study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co. Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-H)
- Jackson, N.; Fenstermacher, J.M. (1967) Evaluation of Some Turf- grass Fungicides-1967. (Unpublished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; prepared by Univ. of Rhode Island, Agricul- tural Experiment Station, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-B)
- Jackson, N.; Fenstermacher, J.M. (1968) Evaluation of Some Turf- grass Fungicides-1968. (Unpublished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; prepared by Univ. of Rhode Island, Agricul- tural Experiment Station, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-C)
- Hoskins, R.W. (1969) Snow Mold Test--"Demosan" 65W and "Benlate" 50W. (Unpublished study including letter dated Apr 25, 1969 from M.B. Harrison to R.W. Hoskins, received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-D)
- Vargas, J.M. (1969) Snow Mold Fungicide Study 1969: Boyne Highlands, Michigan. (Unpublished study including letter dated Jun 2, 1969 from I.M. Vargas to R.T. Miller, received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-E)

- Fushtey, S.G. (1969) Snow Mold Control Trials (1968-69). (Unpublished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; prepared by Univ. of Guelph, Dept. of Botany, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-F)
- Watson, J.R. (1969) Snow Mold Tests. (Unpublished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; prepared by Toro Manufacturing Co., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-G)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1969?) Response of New Grass Seedings to Fungicide Treatments. (Unpublished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; CDL:003046-H)
- Freeman, T.E.; Meyers, H.G. (1968) Pythium blight of turfgrasses. Florida Turf Grower 3(?/Jan):1-5. (Also~In~unpublished submis- sion received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-I)
- Freeman, T.E. (1969) ?Pythium Tests in Greenhouse, 1967-1968|. (Unpublished study including letter dated Jun 4, 1969 from T.E. Freeman to R.T. Miller, received Jul 23, 1969 under 352- 344; prepared by Univ. of Florida, Dept. of Plant Pathology, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-J)
- Wells, H.D. (1968?) Effectiveness of Fungicides for the Control of Cottony Blight on Field Plots of Ryegrass Turf in 1968. (Unpub- lished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL: 003046-K)
- Wells, H.D. (1969?) Chloroneb, a Foliage Fungicide for Control of Cottony Blight of Ryegrass. (Unpublished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; prepared by U.S. Agricultural Research Service, Crops Research Div. in cooperation with Univ. of Georgia, College of Agriculture, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003046-L)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1965?) Summary of Laboratory Results with Seed Application of Chloroneb (S.F. 1823-75W) on Cotton. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-B)
- 1472 E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1965?) Summary of Field Results with Seed Application of Chloroneb (S.F. 1823-75W) on Acid Delinted Cotton. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-C)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1970?) Evaluation of Two Rates of Demosan 65W on Acid Delinted Cottonseed in Greenhouse Planting in 1970. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-E)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1971?) Evaluation of Three Rates of "Demosan" Chloroneb on Acid and Reginned Cottonseed in Pythium and Rhizocbonia Boosted Soil in Greenhouse Plantings in 1971. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-F)
- Gillham, L.B. (1971?) Farmer Cottonseed Treatment Trials 1971: Acid Delinted Cottonseed. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; submitted by E.I.

- du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-H)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1971?) Cottonseed Treatment Studies, Delta Pine and Land Co., Scott, Mississippi 1971. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-I)
- Davis, R.G. (1971?) 1971 Regional Cottonseed Treatment Test ?in Mississippi|.

 (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; prepared by Mississippi
 Agricultural and Forestry Experiment Station, Delta Branch, submitted by E.I. du Pont de
 Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-J)
- 1478 Kappelman, A. (1971?) 1971 Regional Cottonseed Treatment Test ?in Alabama|. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352- 360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-K)
- Welch, A.W. (1971?) 1971 Regional Seed Treatment Tests ?in North Carolina|. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352- 360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-L)
- Hunter, R.E. (1971?) Regional Cottonseed Treatment Test--1971: Chickasha, Oklahoma: Acid Delinted: Machine Delinted. (Unpub- lished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL: 003095-M)
- Pinckard, J.C. (1971?) Table: List of Chemical Seed Treatments Tested in Louisiana in cooperation with the Regional Cottonseed Treatment Committee. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-N)
- 1482 Chamber, A.Y. (1971?) Tennessee Regional Cottonseed Treatment Test ?in 1971|. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-O)
- Roncadori, R.W.; McCarter, S.M. (1971?) Regional Cotton Seed Treat- ment Test ?in Georgia in 1971. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-P)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1971?) Evaluation of Selected 1971 Regional Cottonseed Treatment Samples in Lab- oratory: Pythium and Rhizoctonia Boosted Soil Plantings, Decem- ber, 1971. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-Q)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1971?) Summary of "Demosan" T Performance in the 1971 Regional Cottonseed Treat- ment Trials. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; CDL:003095-R)
- Minton, E.B. (1971?) Report of the Seed Treatment Committee-- 1971. (Unpublished study received Apr 3, 1972 under 352-360; prepared by U.S. Agricultural Research, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003095-S)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1966?) Evaluation of "Demosan" 65W Chloroneb Fungicide as Seed Overcoat of Black- eye Peas for Protection Against

- Rhizoctonia in Florida in 1966. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; CDL:221888-C)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1966?) Evaluation of "Demosan" and Insecticide 1179 as Seed Additives to Ferry- Morse E5221 White Bush Beans and as In-Furrow Plantings at San Juan Bautista in 1966. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; CDL:221888-D)
- Krause, K.L. (1966?) Evaluation of "Demosan" and Insecticide as Seed Treatment Additives to Ferry Morse E5221 White Bush Beans in Greenhouse Planting of Regular Seed Rot Test Soil and in Rhizoctonia Boosted Soil in 1966. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-E)
- 1490 Krause, K.L. (1966?) Effect of "Demosan" and Insecticide 1179 as Additive Seed Treatments To "Arasan" 75 on Piota Beans in Greenhouse Plantings in 1966. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-F)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1972?) Performance of "Demosan" T on Henderson Bush Lima Beans in Greenhouse Planting in Rhizoctonia Boosted Soil in 1972--Trial 1. (Unpub- lished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; CDL:221888-H)
- Krause, K.L. (1972?) Performance of "Demosan" T on Five Lots of Beans in Greenhouse Planting in Pythium Boosted Soil in 1972-- Trial 1. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-I)
- Krause, K.L. (1973?) Performance of Demosan ^(R)I T. on Henderson Bush Lima Beans in Greenhouse Plantings in Pythium Boosted Soil in 1973. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-N)
- WARF Institute, Incorporated (1971) ?Oral LD 50 and Skin Irritation of 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-Dimethoxybenzene|: WARF No. 1080676. (Unpublished study received Oct 18, 1971 under 538-79; submitted by O.M. Scott & Sons Co., Marysville, Ohio; CDL:050143-A)
- O.M. Scott & Sons Company (1971) Summary of Results for: Inert ingredient chloroneb formulations for Turfgrass Disease Control: Unpublished study; 24 p.
- O.M. Scott & Sons Company (1976) Research Report Supporting the Registration of Chloroneb and Terrazole as Seed Treatments for Control of Seed and Seedling Diseases. (Unpublished study received Jun 3, 1977 under 538-152; CDL:230612-A)
- Freeman, T.E.; Meyers, H.G. (1969) Control of Pythium blight. Golf Superintendent? (?/May):24-45. (Also~In~unpublished submission received Jun 3, 1977 under 538-152; submitted by O.M. Scott & Sons Co., Marysville, Ohio; CDL:230612-B)
- University of Rhode Island (1954) Stem Rust (?~Puccinia gramin?~- ?~is?~) Development

- on Injured Merion Bluegrass: Plant Pathology Report 4. (Unpublished study received Jan 15, 1957 under 400- 11; submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL: 003230-H)
- Miller, H.N. (1970?) Several Fungicides as Soil Amendments and Soil Drenches on Heavily Infested Soil for the Control of Phyto- phthora on Annual Plants. (Unpublished study received Oct 5, 1970 under 372-UG(43); submitted by Mallinckrodt Chemical Works, St. Louis, Mo.; CDL:003213-E)
- Bird, L.S. (1964) In-Covering Soil Fungicide Tests for Cotton Seed- ling Disease Control. (Unpublished study received Dec 16, 1964 under 1258-740; prepared by Texas A&M Univ., Texas Agricultural Experiment Station in cooperation with U.S. Agricultural Research Service, Crops Research Div., submitted by Olin Mathie- son Chemical Corp., New York, N.Y.; CDL:005767-B)
- Owen, J.H. (1964) 1964 Cotton Soil Fungicide Test. (Unpublished study received Dec 16, 1964 under 1258-740; prepared by Univ. of Georgia, College Experiment Station, submitted by Olin Mathieson Chemical Corp., New York, N.Y.; CDL:005764-D)
- Freeman, T.E. (1967) Pythium Test in Greenhouse (1967). (Unpub- lished study including letter dated Jun 21, 1968 from T.E. Free- man to William A. Small, received Jul 25, 1969 under 1258-826; prepared by Univ. of Florida, Institute of Food and Agricul- tural Sciences, Dept. of Plant Pathology, submitted by Olin Mathieson Chemical Corp., Stamford, Conn.; CDL:005787-J)
- Wadsworth, D.F.; Young, H.C., Jr.; McCoy, R.E. (1967) Peanut Disease Research-1966: Progress Report: Processed Series P-559. (Unpublished study received Feb 16, 1968 under 1258-813; pre- pared by Oklahoma State Univ., Dept. of Botany and Plant Patho- logy, Experiment Station, submitted by Olin Corp., Stamford, Conn.; CDL:005784-G)
- Rhodes, R.C. (19??) Determination of 2,5-Dichlorohydroquinone and 2,5-Dichloroquinone in Milk. Undated method. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-D)
- Rhodes, R.C.; Pease, H.L. (19??) Chemical Identification of Meta-bolites of 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-Dimethoxybenzene in Dog and Rat Urine. (Unpublished study including supplement I, received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091147-I)
- Rhodes, R.C. (19??) Greenhouse Studies with C^14I Ring-Labeled Chloroneb in Cotton Plants. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:091146-S)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1969) Data Supporting Use of "Tersan" SP Turf Fungicide ("Demosan" 65W) for the Control of Typhula Snow Mold and Pythium Blight on Turfgrass. (Unpublished study received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; CDL:003046-A)

- Wagner, J.R. (1974) Disease Control with Seed Treatment. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL: 221888-B)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1971) Regional Pod Rot Test--1971. (Unpublished study received Sep 28, 1976 under 400-130; CDL:230405-O)
- Osborne, W.W.; Pristou, R.; Lambe, R.C.; Fox, J.A.; Wills, W.H.; Moore, L.D.; Harris, C. (1971) Field Evaluation of Various Nematicide-Fungicide Combinations for the Control of Plant Parasitic Nematodes and the Pod Rot Disease in Peanuts. (Unpublished study received Sep 28, 1976 under 400-130; prepared by Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State Univ., Dept. of Plant Pathology and Physiology, submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:230405-Q)
- Lyle, J.A.; Brogden, C.A. (1970) 1970 Florunner Peanut Seed Treat- ment. (Unpublished study received May 1, 1974 under 4F1499; prepared by Auburn Univ., Agricultural Experiment Station, sub- mitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:094551-K)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1975?) Rate of UBI-1107: Seedling Survival per 20 Pounds Seed (Ave. Stand Count). (Unpublished study received Mar 27, 1975 under 400-118; CDL:230407-C)
- McIntire, S. (1971) 1971 Cottonseed Treatment Tests, Senatobia Field Station. (Unpublished study received Apr 12, 1972 under 400-80; submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL: 023352-A)
- 2999 Uniroyal Chemical (1975) Field Evaluation Report. (Unpublished study received Jul 15, 1976 under 400-118; CDL:224932-D)
- 3001 Uniroyal Chemical (1974) Phytotoxicity. (Unpublished study re- ceived Jul 15, 1976 under 400-118; CDL:224933-B)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1969) Data on Seed Treatment--Soil Fungicide Test for Control of Cotton Seedling Diseases, Athens, Georgia, 1969: Table 2. (Unpublished study received Jun 5, 1970 under 0F0939; CDL:093245-N)
- Kappelman, A.J., Jr. (1972) Regional Cottonseed Treatment Test, Tallassee, Alabama, 1972. (Unpublished study received May 16, 1973 under 400-107; prepared by U.S. Agricultural Research Service, Southern Region, submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:003284-G)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1972) 1972 Regional Cottonseed Treatment Test. (Unpublished study received May 16, 1973 under 400-107; prepared in cooperation with Seed Treatment Committee of the Cotton Disease Council; CDL:003284-I)
- McIntire, S. (1966) Deep South 1966 Vitavax Cotton Field Studies. (Unpublished study received Nov 29, 1967 under 400-EX-28; sub- mitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:123430-C)
- 3191 Uniroyal Chemical (1967) Cold Hardiness Test: SOCS 7A(AD). (Unpub- lished study

- received Nov 29, 1967 under 400-EX-28; CDL: 123430-H)
- Wadsworth, D.F.; Young, H.C., Jr.; McCoy, R.E. (1967) Progress Report: Peanut Disease Research--1966: Processed Series P-559. (Unpublished study received Feb 23, 1968 under 400-EX-33; prepared by Oklahoma State Univ., Dept. of Botany and Plant Pathology, submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL: 123438-D)
- Paulus, A.O.; DeWolfe, T.; Osgood, J.; Shibuya, F.; Cudney, D. (1968) Control of Rhizoctonia Seedling Disease of Cotton. Rev. (Unpublished study received Jan 13, 1969 under 400-EX-33; pre- pared by Univ. of California--Riverside, ?Agricultural Experiment Station in cooperation with Agricultural Extension Service, Imperial County, submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:123439-A)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1977) Vitavax-3F: Peanuts. (Unpublished study received May 30, 1978 under 400-EX-55; CDL:234122-B)
- 3269 E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1968) Chloroneb-- Pesticide Petition No. 8F0657: Supplemental Information: ?Answer to FDA Letter of June 4, 1968. (Unpublished study received Jul 8, 1968 under 8F0657; CDL:091146-A)
- Krause, K.L. (1972) Performance of "Demosan" T on Wade Bush Bean in Greenhouse Planting in Pythium and Rhizoctonia Boosted Soil in 1972--Trial 2. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-J)
- 3271 Krause, K.L. (1972) Performance of "Demosan" T on Henderson Rush Lima Beans in Greenhouse Plantings in Pythium and Rhizoctonia Boosted Soils in 1972--Trial 2. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-K)
- Krause, K.L. (1972) Performance of "Demosan" T on Wade Bush Bean in Greenhouse Planting in Pythium and Rhizoctonia Boosted Soil in 1972--Trial 3. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-L)
- Krause, K.L. (1972) Performance of "Demosan" T on Henderson Bush Lima Beans in Greenhouse Plants in Pythium and Rhizoctonia Boosted Soils in 1972--Trial 3. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-M)
- Krause, K.L. (1973) Performance of Demosan^(R)I T. on Henders Bush Lima Beans in Greenhouse Plantings in Rhizoctonia Boosted Soil in 1973. (Unpublished study received Feb 10, 1975 under 352-360; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc.; Wilmington, Del.; CDL:221888-O)
- Kline, D.M. (1968) Effectiveness of fungicides in controlling bar- ley loose smut. Page 28,~In~Fungicidal Control of Smut Diseases of Cereals. Compiled by J.G. Moseman. Beltsville, Md.: U.S. Dept. of Agriculture. (U.S. Agricultural Research Service, Crops Research Div., CR 42-68, also~In~unpublished submission including glossary, received Mar 25, 1969 under 9G0819; sub- mitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.;

- CDL:093520-AQ)
- Ranney, C.D.; Burchfield, E.G. (1967) Report of the Seed Treatment Committee--1967. (Unpublished study received Feb 23, 1968 under 400-EX-33; prepared by (Cotton Disease Council), Seed Treatment Committee, submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:123438-F)
- Wilbur-Ellis Company (1979) Efficacy Data--Summary. Summary of studies 237333-B through 237333-F. (Unpublished study received Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; CDL:237333-A)
- Wilbur-Ellis Company (1978) ?Acala SJ 2 Cotton Seedling Survival and Emergence after Fungicide Treatment|. (Unpublished study received Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; CDL:234333-B)
- Garber, R. (1978) Special Seed Treatment Trial--1978. (Unpublished study received Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; prepared by U.S. Cot- ton Research Station, submitted by Wilbur-Ellis Co., Fresno, Calif.; CDL:237333-C)
- Chambers, A.Y. (1978) Evaluation of Fungicides for Treatment of Cotton Seed, Jackson, Tennessee, 1978. (Unpublished study re- ceived Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; prepared by Univ. of Ten- nessee, Agricultural Experiment Station, Dept. of Agricultural Biology, submitted by Wilbur-Ellis Co., Fresno, Calif., CDL: 237333-E)
- University of California--Davis, Department of Plant Pathology (1978) Effect of Various Seed Treatments on Seedling Survival in Flats Infested with~Rhizoctonia solani, Phytrhium ultimum~? and ?~Thielaviopsis basicola?~. (Unpublished study received Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; submitted by Wilbur-Ellis Co., Fresno, Calif.; CDL:237333-F)
- Wilbur-Ellis Company (1979) Residue Data--Summary. (Unpublished study including letter dated Oct 16, 1978 from J.H. Stoner to Dave T. Schulteis, received Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; pre- pared in cooperation with Stoner Laboratories; CDL:237334-A)
- 4240 Stoner Laboratories (1978) Chloroneb and Metabolite. Method 502.257.2 dated Oct 16, 1978. (Unpublished study including sum- mary, received Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; submitted by Wilbur- Ellis Co., Fresno, Calif.; CDL:237335-A)
- Unilab Research (1978) Toxicity Analysis: Technical Report: Labora- tory No. 10165-2. (Unpublished study received Feb 6, 1979 under 2935-413; submitted by Wilbur-Ellis Co., Fresno, Calif.; CDL: 237336-A)
- Cole, H.; Goldberg, C.W.; Duich, J.M. (1973) Merion Kentucky Blue- grass;~Poa pratensis~?. (Unpublished study received Oct 25, 1973 under 1001-50; prepared by Pennsylvania State Univ., Depts. of Plant Pathology and Agronomy, submitted by Cleary W.A. Corp., Somerset, N.J.; CDL:009069-A)
- Goldberg, C.W.; Cole, H.; Duich, J.M. (1972) Creeping Bent;~Agros-~ ~?tris palustris~?. (Unpublished study received Oct 25, 1973 under 1001-50; prepared by Pennsylvania State Univ., Depts. of Plant Pathology and Agronomy, submitted by Cleary W.A. Corp., Somerset, N.J.; CDL:009069-B)
- Sherman, H. (1965) Oral LDI50[^] Test: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 157-65.

- (Unpublished study received Oct 27, 1965 under 352-313; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:050831-A)
- 4975 Elliott, G.N. (1971) Cotton Seedling Disease Trials--S.J. Valley, 1971. (Unpublished study received Sep 5, 1974 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002466-C)
- Bastian, R.A. (1971) Demosan--Arasan--Cotton Trial. (Unpublished study received Sep 5, 1974 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002466-D)
- Paulus, A.O. (1971) Cotton--Rhizoctonia and Pythium--Delta Pine 16. (Unpublished study including letter dated Jun 7, 1971 from A.O. Paulus to William C. Reische, received Sep 5, 1974 under 352-312; prepared by Univ. of California--Riverside, Agricultur- al Extension Service, Dept. of Plant Pathology, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002466-E)
- Paulus, A.O. (1972) Cotton Seedling Trial--Rhizoctonia--Pythium, University of California, Riverside: Variety--Acala SJ--1. (Un- published study including letter dated May 16, 1972 from A.O. Paulus to William C. Reische, received Sep 5, 1974 under 352-312; prepared by Univ. of California--Riverside, Agricultur- al Extension Service, Dept. of Plant Pathology, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002466-F)
- Paulus, A.O. (1974) Rhizoctonia--Pythium Cotton Seedling Trial, University of California, Riverside. (Unpublished study includ- ing letter dated May 29, 1974 from A.O. Paulus to J.F. Magana, received Sep 5, 1974 under 352-312; prepared by Univ. of Cali- fornia--Riverside, Agricultural Extension Service, Dept. of Plant Pathology, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:002466-H)
- Sherman, H. (1964) Ten-Dose Subacute Oral Test: (and Skin Irritation & Hypersensitivity Tests for Chloroneb): Haskell Laboratory Report No. 23-64. (Unpublished study received Oct 27, 1965 under 352-313; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:050831-D)
- Hood, D.B. (1964) Acute Skin Absorption Toxicity: Haskell Labora- tory Report No. 153-64. (Unpublished study received Oct 27, 1965 under 352-313; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:050831-E)
- Kwon, B.K. (1965) Acute Inhalation Toxicity: Haskell Laboratory Re- port No. 31-65.
 (Unpublished study received Oct 27, 1965 under 352-313; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:050831-F)
- 4983 Reinke, R.E. (1963) Eye Irritation Test. (Unpublished study re- ceived Oct 27, 1965 under 352-313; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:050831-G)
- Fushtey, S.G. (1971) Snow Mold Trials--University of Guelph, 1970-- 71. (Unpublished study including letter dated May 26, 1971 from S.G. Fushtey to A.R. Appleton, received

- Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; prepared by Univ. of Guelph, Dept. of Botany, Canada, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-J)
- Wells, H.D.; Gay, ?; Littrell, ? (1969?) ?Efficacy Data of Demonsan on Crops|. (Unpublished study including letter dated May 23, 1969 from H.D. Wells to Bob Miller, received Jul 23, 1969 under 352-344; prepared by U.S. Agricultural Research Service, Crops Research Div., Georgia Coastal Plain Experiment Station, submit- ted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL: 003046-M)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1973) Vitavax--Fungicide: Peanut Seed Treatment Test Summary at 3-6 Oz/100 Pounds of Seed. (Unpublished study received May 2, 1975 under 400-81; CDL:098028-A)
- Hsi, D.C.H.; Finkner, R.E. (1969) 1968 Valencia peanut seed treat- ment. Seed and Soil Treatment Newsletter 11(?/May 1):56-57. (Also~In~unpublished submission received May 2, 1975 under 400-81; submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL: 098028-B)
- Ellis, M.A.; Hepperly, P.R.; Paschal, E.H., II; Foor, S.R. (19??) Seed treatments. Pages 189-190,~In~Fungicide and Nematicide Test, Volume 32. By American Phytopathological Society. St. Paul, Minn.: APS. (Also~In~unpublished submission received Dec 11, 1977 under 400-112; submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:238081-B)
- Hepperly, P.R.; Sinclair, J.B. (19??) Seed treatments. Pages 190- 191,~In~Fungicide and Nematicide Test, Volume 32. By American Phytopathological Society. St. Paul, Minn.: APS. (Also~In~un- published submission received Dec 11, 1977 under 400-112; CDL: 238081-C)
- Pfrimmer, T.R. (1968) Results of Insecticide Tests with Materials Furnished by E.I. Du Pont de Nemours and Company. (Unpublished study received Apr 16, 1971 under 1G1144; prepared by U.S. Agri- cultural Research Service, Entomology Research Div., Cotton In- sects Research Branch, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:090931-V)
- Backman, P.A.; Rodriguez-Kabana, R.; Clark, E.M. (1972) Soil-Borne Disease Tests: Pythium Pod Rot. (Unpublished study received Mar 26, 1975 under 748-EX-12; prepared by Auburn Univ., Dept. of Botany and Microbiology, submitted by PPG Industries, Inc., Chemical Div., Pittsburgh, Pa.; CDL:096409-B)
- Backman, P.A.; Rodriguez-Kabana, R.; Clark, E.M.; et al. (1973) 1973--Pod Rot Control. (Unpublished study received Mar 26, 1975 under 748-EX-12; prepared by Auburn Univ., Dept. of Botany and Microbiology, submitted by PPG Industries, Inc., Chemical Div., Pittsburgh, Pa.; CDL:096409-C)
- Backman, P.A.; Rodriguez-Kabana, R.; Clark, E.M. (1972) Soil-Borne Disease Tests:~Sclerotium rolfsii~?. (Unpublished study re- ceived Mar 26, 1975 under 748-EX-12; prepared by Auburn Univ., Dept. of Botany and Microbiology, submitted by PPG Industries, Inc., Chemical Div., Pittsburgh, Pa.; CDL:096409-H)

- Backman, P.A.; Rodriguez-Kabana, R.; Clark, E.M.; et al. (1973) Control of~Sclerotium rolfsii~White Mold of Peanuts. (Unpub- lished study received Mar 26, 1975 under 748- EX-12; prepared by Auburn Univ., Dept. of Botany and Microbiology, submitted by PPG Industries, Inc., Chemical Div., Pittsburgh, Pa.; CDL:096409-I)
- Backman, P.A.; Rodriguez-Kabana, R.; Clark, E.M.; et al. (1974) Control of~Sclerotium rolfsii~White Mold in Peanuts. (Unpub- lished study received Mar 26, 1975 under 748- EX-12; prepared by Auburn Univ., Dept. of Botany and Microbiology, submitted by PPG Industries, Inc., Chemical Div., Pittsburgh, Pa.; CDL:096409-J)
- Backman, P.A.; Rodriguez-Kabana, R.; Clark, E.M.; et al. (1973) 1973 Soil-Borne Interactions (Cylindrocladium Test). (Unpublished study received Mar 26, 1975 under 748-EX-12; prepared by Auburn Univ., Dept. of Botany and Microbiology, submitted by PPG Industries, Inc., Chemical Div., Pittsburgh, Pa.; CDL:096409-T)
- Howard, F.L. (1955) What's new in turfgrass diseases--and their control. Golf Course Reporter? (?/Mar-Apr):5-10. (Also~In~un- published submission received Mar 6, 1958 under 1023-10; submit- ted by Upjohn Co., Kalamazoo, Mich.; CDL:024377-F)
- Upjohn Company (19??) ?Control of Powdery Mildew and Brown Patches on Lawns|. (Unpublished study received Aug 20, 1959 under 1023- 10; prepared in cooperation with Pennsylvania State Univ., Ex- tension Service and U.S. Dept. of Agriculture; CDL:024382-B)
- 12838 King, C.L. (1958) Lawn Grass Plots, 1958. (Unpublished study re- ceived Aug 20, 1959 under 1023-10; prepared by Kansas State Col- lege, submitted by Upjohn Co., Kalamazoo, Mich.; CDL:024382-C)
- Arnaud, L.J. (1966) Technical Service Calls. (Unpublished study received Nov 21, 1967 under 7946-1; submitted by J.J. Mauget Co., Burbank, Calif.; CDL:008103-AG)
- Miller, L.; McClanahan, R.J. (1958) Onion Seed Treatments: Report No. 2787. (Unpublished study received Jan 28, 1959 under 3125- 25; prepared by Canada, Dept. of Agriculture, submitted by Mobay Chemical Corp., Kansas City, Mo.; CDL:006356-AG)
- Kline, D.M. (1968) Effectiveness of fungicides in controlling bar- ley loose smut. Page 28,~In~Fungicidal Control of Smut Diseases of Cereals. By J.G. Moseman, comp. Beltsville, Md.: U.S. Agricultural Research Service, Crops Research Div. (CR 42-68; also~In~unpublished submission received Jul 19, 1968 under 400- 80; submitted by Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL: 003258-AK)
- 21787 Harvey, jr, J. 1979. Stability of ¹⁴C-Chloroneb in Water at Various pH Values. Unpublished study received December 13, 1979 under 352-386; submitted by E.I. DuPont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Delaware. CDL:241500-J
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company (1979) Storage Stability of Tech- nical Chloroneb: November, 1978, to October, 1979. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; CDL:241500-A)

- 21870 Hinckle, L. (1979) Oral LD50 Test: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 545-79. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352- 386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-B)
- Ferenz, R.L.; Dashiell, O.L. (1979) Eye Irritation in Rabbits--EPA Pesticide Registration: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 546-79. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; submit- ted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL: 241500-C)
- Ferenz, R.L.; Dashiell, O.L. (1979) Skin Irritation Test on Rabbits for Pesticide Registration: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 558-79. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-D)
- Cameron, J.T.; Hinkle, S. (1979) Final Report: Avian Dietary Tox- icity (LC50) in Mallard Ducks: Project No. 201-527. (Unpub- lished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-E)
- Cameron, J.T.; Hinkle, S. (1979) Final Report: Avian Dietary Tox- icity (LC50) Study in Bobwhite Quail: Project No. 201-528. (Un- published study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-F)
- Zihal, A.J. (1979) 96-Hour LC50 to Rainbow Trout: Haskell Labo- ratory Report No. 475-79. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-G)
- Trivits, R.L. (1979) 96-Hour LC50 to Bluegill Sunfish: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 656-79. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-H)
- Goodman, N.C. (1979) 48-Hour LC50 to~Daphnia magna~: Haskell Labo- ratory Report No. 555-79. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352-386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-I)
- 21878 Harvey, J., Jr. (19??) Stability of 14C-Chloroneb in Water at Var- ious pH Values. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 un- der 352-386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wil- mington, Del.; CDL:241500-J)
- 21879 Harvey, J., Jr. (1978?) Activated Sewage Sludge: Metabolism of 14C- Chloroneb. (Unpublished study received Dec 13, 1979 under 352- 386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:241500-K)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company (1965) Supplemental Toxicolog- ical Information: 1,4-Dicloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene, Technical. (Unpublished study received Jul 7, 1965 under 352-312; CDL: 240813-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company (1965) 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-dimeth- oxybenzene:

- Acute Toxicity--Fish. (Unpublished study received Jul 7, 1965 under 352-312; CDL:240813-B)
- E.I. DuPont de Nemours and Company (1979) Tersan^(R)I 1991 Turf Fungicide for Use as a Tank Mix with Tersan^(R) SP Turf Fungi- cide To Control Snow Mold Diseases of Turfgrasses. (Unpub- lished study received Oct 15, 1979 under 352-357; CDL:241217-A)
- Alvarez, J.R., inventor; E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Co., assignee (1968) Process for preparing 1,4-dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene. U.S. patent 3,363,005. Jan 9. 2 p. Cl. 260-613; U.S. patent 3,265,564.)
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (1979) Summary of Reported Pesticide Incidents Involving Chloroneb: Pesticide Incident Monitoring System Report No. 126. (U.S. EPA, Office of Pesticide Programs, Benefits and Field Studies Div., Human Effects Monitoring Branch; unpublished report.)
- Thapliyal, P.N.; Sinclair, J.B. (1971) Translocation of Benomyl, Carboxin, and Chloroneb in Soybean Seedlings. Phytopathological Notes 61(?/Oct):1301-1302.

 (Also~In~unpublished submission re- ceived Jan 8, 1980 under 400-112; submitted by state of Michigan under MI 80/1 for Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL: 241559-A)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1977) Plot Information. (Unpublished study re- ceived Jan 8, 1980 under 400-112; submitted by state of Michigan under MI 80/1 for Uniroyal; CDL:241559-G)
- Uniroyal Chemical (1976) Plot Information. (Unpublished study re- ceived Jan 8, 1980 under 400-112; submitted by state of Michigan under MI 80/1 for Uniroyal; CDL:241559-I)
- Ellett, C.W.; Schmitthenner, A.F. (1973) Soybean Seed Treatment-- 1973. (Unpublished study received Jan 8, 1980 under 400-112; prepared by Ohio State Univ., Dept. of Plant Pathology and Ohio Agricultural Research and Development Center, submitted by state of Michigan under MI 80/1 for Uniroyal Chemical, Bethany, Conn.; CDL:241559-J)
- Haskett, W.C.; Strong, M.C. (1962) ?Foliage Treatment with Botran on Leaf Lettuce for Botrytis Control. (Unpublished study in- cluding published data, received Jun 1, 1963 under PP0375; pre- pared in cooperation with J.W. Davis Co. and Michigan State Univ., Dept. of Botany and Plant Pathology, submitted by Upjohn Co., Kalamazoo, Mich.; CDL:090404-E)
- Teeters, W.R.; Oglesbee, P.B., Jr. (1976) ?Helena Brand 10-D Cotton Fungicide: Toxicity to Albino Rats|. (U.S. Environmental Pro- tection Agency, Pharmacology Laboratory, unpublished report.)
- 32352 Growth, Incorporated (1968) Summary Performance Data: ?Go-Better|. (Unpublished study received Jan 27, 1969 under 10417-1; CDL: 004922-A)
- Osmanski, S.; Doyle, R.L.; Scott, C.D. (1980) Acute Oral and Dermal Toxicity, Primary

- Dermal Irritation, Corrosivity Potential, and Acute Eye Irritation Potentials of Flo Pro Demosan: Ref. 80- 0376-21. (Unpublished study received May 6, 1980 under 1352-29; prepared by Hill Top Research, Inc., submitted by Cargill, Inc., Minneapolis, Minn.; CDL:242399-A)
- Growth, Incorporated (1968) 1968 Residue Analysis. (Unpublished study received Sep 9, 1969 under 10417-1; prepared in coopera- tion with Woodson-Tenent Laboratories; CDL:004923-B)
- Julis, A.J. (1980) The Effect of DPX-4189 on Microorganisms and Microbial Populations of Soils: AMR-13-80. (Unpublished study received Jun 16, 1980 under 352-105; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:099462-X)
- Osmanski, S. (1980) Acute Oral and Dermal Toxicity, Primary Skin Irritation and Corrosivity and Acute Eye Irritations Potentials of Evershield Demosan 52-77 29.5% Demosan. (Unpublished study received May 6, 1980 under 1352-30; prepared by Hill Top Re- search, Inc., submitted by Cargill, Inc., Minneapolis, Minn.; CDL:242408-A)
- Zummo, N.; Plakidas, A.G. (1958) Brown patch of St. Augustine grass. Plant Disease Reporter 42(10):1141-1147. (Also in un- published submission received Feb 25, 1959 under 1258-524; sub- mitted by Olin Corp., Stamford, Conn.; CDL:005753-A)
- Jackson, N. (1971) Letter sent to R.T. Miller dated Jul 14, 1971 ?Estimates of snow mold disease. (Unpublished study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; prepared by Univ. of Rhode Island, Agricultural Experiment Station, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:003093-B)
- Watson, J.R. (1971) Letter sent to R.T. Miller dated May 26, 1971 ?Results on snowmold. (Unpublished study received Jan 10, 1972 under 352-359; prepared by Toro Manufacturing Corp., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL: 003093-I)
- Urbanowski, R.L. (1966) Letter sent to Harry W. Hays dated Sep 20, 1966 ?10% active Demosan granularl. (Unpublished study received Oct 16, 1967 under 8F0657; prepared by Diamond Alkali Co., sub- mitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:092951-H)
- Muska, C.F.; Trivits, R.L. (1980) 96-Hour LC50 to Bluegill Sunfish: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 869-80. (Unpublished study re- ceived Nov 19, 1980 under 352-386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:243826-A)
- Dashiell, O.L.; Silber, L.S. (1980) Primary Skin Irritation and Sensitization Test in Guinea Pigs (EPA): Haskell Laboratory Re- port No. 584-80. (Unpublished study received Nov 19, 1980 under 352-386; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Washington, D.C.; CDL:243826-B)
- Ralston Purina Company (1980) Primary Eye Irritation--Method, Sum- mary: RT Laboratory No. 807770. (Unpublished study received Mar 18, 1981 under 538-103; submitted by O.M. Scott & Sons Co., Marysville, Ohio; CDL:244643-A)

- WARF Institute, Incorporated (1974) Report: WARF No. 4082295. (Unpublished study received Mar 18, 1981 under 538-103; sub- mitted by O.M. Scott & Sons Co., Marysville, Ohio; CDL:244643-B)
- Karrh, B.W. (1976) Letter sent to John E. Moss dated Oct 4, 1976 ?Results of analyses of du Pont pesticides for dimethylnitrosa- mines (DMN)|. (Unpublished study received Dec 8, 1976 under 352-378; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:230783-A)
- Hinkle, S.; Bristol, K.L. (1980) Final Report: Acute Oral LD50 Study in Mallard Ducks: Project No. 201-529; HLO-292-80. (Un- published study received Nov 19, 1980 under 352-386; prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:243826-C)
- Ralston Purina Company (1981) Granular Turf Fungicide: F-6581; Batch #1-203-3RH: RT Lab No. 881553. (Unpublished study re- ceived Sep 16, 1981 under 538-103; submitted by O.M. Scott & Sons Co., Marysville, Ohio; CDL:246092-A)
- 93885 E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1981) Chloroneb: Data Supporting Waiver of Certain Requirements for the Chloroneb Registration Standard. Summary of studies 246627-B through 246627-K. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; CDL:246627-A)
- 93886 E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1980) Characteri- zation of Technical Chloroneb: (1979-1980 Production Plus Mate- rial Used in Rat and Dog Chronic Feeding Trials). (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; CDL:246627-B)
- Hazleton Laboratories America, Incorporated (1981) Two-year Feeding Study in Rats: Fungicide 1823: Addendum to Project No. 201-124: ?Submitter | HLO-251-67. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:246627-C)
- Krahn, D.F.; Donovan, S.M. (1981) Mutagenicity Evaluation in ?~Salmonella typhimurium~?: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 147- 81. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:246627-D)
- 93889 Galloway, S.M.; Lebowitz, H. (1981) Mutagenicity Evaluation of 13,921 in an~in vitro~Cytogenetic Assay Measuring Chromosome Aberration Frequencies in Chinese Hamster Ovary (CHO) Cells: LBI Project No. 20990; HLO-368-81. Final rept. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; prepared by Litton Bio- netics, Inc., submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:246627-E)
- 93890 Krahn, D.F.; Waterer, J.C. (1981) Chinese Hamster Ovary Cell Assay for Mutagenicity: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 834-81. (Un- published study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.;

- CDL: 246627-G)
- Dulka, J.J. (1967?) Mobility of ^14IC-labeled Chloroneb in Soil; Soil TLC Studies:
 Document No. AMR-27-81. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:246627-H)
- 93892 Sherman, H. (1965) Oral LDI50^ Test: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 157-65. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilming- ton, Del.; CDL:246627-I)
- 93893 Hood, D.B. (1964) Acute Skin Absorption Toxicity: Haskell Labora- tory Report No. 153-64. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:246627-J)
- Sherman, H. (1964) ?Ten-dose Subacute Oral Test and Primary Skin Irritation and Sensitization Tests|: Haskell Laboratory Report No. 23-64. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352- 312; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilming- ton, Del.; CDL:246627-K)
- 98323 E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Company, Incorporated (1982) Chloroneb Manufacturing Process: Information Relative to the Possibility of Dioxin Formation in the Final Wash Step. (Unpublished study received Mar 25, 1982 under 352-386; CDL:247157-A)
- Williams, G.M.; Tong, C.; Shimada, T.; et al. (1981) The Hepatocyte Primary Culture/DNA Repair Assay on Compound 13921 Using Rat Hepatocytes in Culture: ?Submitter| HLO-810-81. (Unpublished study received Jan 25, 1982 under 352-312; prepared by Naylor Dana Institute, submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, Del.; CDL:246627-F)
- Mayberry, R.; Savage, J. (1978) Mutagenic activity of several pes- ticides using the salmonella test and saccharomyces D3 system. Taken from: Am. Soc. Microbiol, Abstracts on the Annual Meeting. ?S.l.: s.n.|. (Abstract H 126; p. 125; also In unpublished sub- mission received Oct 1, 1982 under 432-482; submitted by Penick Corp., Lyndhurst, NJ; CDL:248482-B)
- Rhodes, R.; Belasco, I.; Pease, H. (1970) Determination of mobility and adsorption of agrichemicals on soils. Journal of Agricul- tural and Food Chemistry 18(3):524-528. (Also In unpublished submission received Oct 9, 1982 under 352-317; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, DE; CDL:249455-E)
- Weddon, T. (1975) Letter sent to T. Kakuk dated Jan 6, 1975: Acti- Dione thiram chloroneb granular--preliminary acute oral toxicity in male rats: Ref. 003-9610-TEW-74-15. (Unpublished study re- ceived Mar 8, 1983 under 1023-10; submitted by Upjohn Co., Kalamazoo, MI; CDL:249644-R)
- Weddon, T. (1973) Acti-Dione-Thiram + Chloroneb 65W Acute Oral LD50 in Upjohn Sprague-Dawley Rats: 001-9610-TEW-73-2. (Unpub- lished study received Mar 8, 1983 under 1023-10; submitted by Upjohn Co., Kalamazoo, MI; CDL:249644-S)
- 126240 Weddon, T.; Field, C. (1975) Acti-Dione Thiram Chloroneb Primary Skin Irritation in

- Rabbits: 001-9610-TEW-75-6. (Unpublished study received Mar 8, 1983 under 1023-10; submitted by Upjohn Co., Kalamazoo, MI; CDL:249644-X)
- Weddon, T.; Field, C. (1975) Acti-Dione Thiram Chloroneb Eye Irri- tation Study in New
- Zealand Rabbits: 001-9610-TEW-75-5. (Unpub- lished study received Mar 8, 1983 under 1023-10; submitted by Upjohn Co., Kalamazoo, MI; CDL:249644-Y)
- 129668 US EPA (1980) Administrative Record of the Registration Standard for 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene, Chloroneb.
- 129684 US EPA (1980) Administrative Record of the Registration Standard for 1,4-Dichloro-2,5-dimethoxybenzene Chloroneb.
- 131470 Chrzanowski, R. (1979) Distribution of ?14C|-Chloroneb in Sugar Beet Fractions:
 Document No. AMR-110-83. (Unpublished study re- ceived Oct 3, 1983 under 410147; prepared by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., submitted by Kincaid Enterprises,
 Inc., Fillmore, CA; CDL:251457-A)
- Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc. (1983) Chloroneb 3-generation Rat Reproduction Study: Supplement to Hazleton Study Dated 5/25/67--Individual Animal Data: 201-569. (Unpublished study re- ceived Oct 3, 1983; Sep 23, 1983 under 41014-7; submitted by Kincaid Enterprises, Inc., Fillmore, CA; CDL:251458-A)
- Feussner, E.; Christian, M.; Hoberman, A. (1983) Embryo-fetal Tox- icity and Teratogenicity Study of Chloroneb in the Rat: Project 104-004. Final rept. (Unpublished study received Oct 3, 1983; Sep 23, 1983 under 41014-7; prepared by Argus Research Labora- tories, Inc., submitted by Kincaid Enterprises, Inc., Fillmore, CA; CDL:251459-A)
- 133176 Seacoast Laboratories, Inc. (1971) ?Efficacy of Chloroneb and Other Fungicides|.

 (Compilation; unpublished study received Nov 27, 1972 under 1159-187; CDL:024700-A)
- Rhodes, R.; Belasco, I.; Pease, H. (1968) Determination of Mobility and Adsorption of Agrichemicals on Soils: ?Bromacil and Others|. (Unpublished study received Feb 16, 1970 under unknown admin. no.; submitted by E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc., Wilmington, DE; CDL:120113-A)
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours & Co., Inc. (1965) Data Supporting Use of Demosan 65W and Demosan 10D Fungicides for Control of Seedling Diseases in Cotton. (Compilation; unpublished study received Jul 7, 1965 under 352-313; CDL:002951-A)
- O.M. Scott & Sons Company (19??) ?Chemical Study of Polyvis OSH|. (Unpublished study received Mar 18, 1981 under 538-103; CDL: 244644-A)
- O.M. Scott & Sons Company (19??) Analysis of Demosan in Pro Turf Fungicide II. Undated method. (Unpublished study received Mar 18, 1981 under 538-103; CDL:244644-B)
- O.M. Scott & Sons Company (1981) Long Term Shelf Life Storage. (Unpublished study

- received Mar 18, 1981 under 538-103; CDL: 244644-C)
- Viar and Co., Inc. (1979) Environmental Monitoring Data for Chloro- neb: EPA Contract No. 68-01-5095.
- 138335 Tracor Jitco, Inc. (1979) Pesticide Chemical Use Pattern Profile for Chloroneb: 027301: Contract 68-01-5013.
- Hughes, T. (1984) Acute Oral Toxicity Screen in Rats; Acute Dermal Toxicity Screen in Rabbits; Primary Skin Irritation Study in Rabbits; Primary Eye Irritation Study in Rabbits of Seed Treat- ment 3.3 LB Demosan Flowable: Project No. 84-0679-21. Unpublished study prepared by Hill Top Research, Inc. 24 p.
- E.I. du Pont de Nemours (1984) Efficacy Data Summary for the Use of Tersan 1991 Turf Fungicide to Control Anthracnose on Annual Bluegrass Turf. Unpublished study. 3 p.
- 146811 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1985) Chloroneb Residue Study: Safflower and Sunflower. Unpublished study. 16 p.
- 147495 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1985) Chloroneb Residue Study: Potato Seed-piece Treatment. Unpublished compilation. 8 p.
- Hardesty, P. (1985) Terrestrial Dissipation of [Carbon-14]- chloroneb. Unpublished study prepared by E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company, Inc. 15 p.
- Hardesty, P. (1985) Aerobic Soil Metabolism of Chloroneb: Project No. AMR-76-82. Unpublished study prepared by E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Co. 20 p.
- Deenihan, M. (1986) Acute Oral Toxicity: Acute Dermal Toxicity: Primary Skin Irritation: Primary Eye Irritation: NVP Report No.: X6D064G. Unpublished study prepared by Northview Pacific Lab- oratories, Inc. 19 p.
- Hughes, T. (1986) Delayed Contact Hypersensitivity Study in Guinea Pigs of: Chloroneb Flowable Seed Treater 3.3#/Gal. AI: Project No. 86-0322-21. Unpublished study prepared by Hill Top Research Inc. 15 p.
- Wilbur Ellis Co. (1985) Physical-chemical Characteristics: Wilbur- Ellis Apron Chloroneb Flowable. Unpublished compilation. 8 p.
- Northview Pacific Laboratories, Inc. (1984) Acute Oral Toxicity (LD50); Acute Dermal Toxicity; Primary Skin Irritation; Primary Eye Irritation: Wilbur-Ellis Co. Nu-Flow AD: NVP Rept. No. X4B025G. Unpublished study. 29 p.
- Vargas, J.M., Turgeon, A.J. (1975) Translocation of C14 labeled chloroneb in three turfgrass species. Canadian Journal of Plant Science 55(1):85-88.
- Gutenmann, W.H., Lisk, D.J. (1969) Metabolic studies with chloroneb fungicide in a lactating cow. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 17(5): 1008-1010.
- Rhodes, R.C, Pease, H.L., Brantley, B.K. (1971) Fate of C14-labeled chloroneb in plants and soils. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 19(4):745-749.
- Rhodes, R., Pease, H.L. (1971) Fate of chloroneb in animals. Journal of Agricultural and

- Food Chemistry 19(4):750-753.
- Verma, R.K.; Vyas, S.C. (1976) Uptake, translocation and persistence of five systemic fungicides in gram seedlings. Pesticides 10(12):21-24.
- Kirk, B.T., Sinclair, J.B., Lambremont, E.N. (1969) Translocation of C14-labeled chloroneb and DMOC in cotton seedlings. Phytopathology 59(10): 1473-1476.
- Helling, C.S.; Dennison, D.G.; Kaufman, D.D. (1974) Fungicide movement in soils. Phytopathology 64(8):1091-1100.
- Davis, R.G.; Pinckard, J.A. (1971) Comparative systemic fungicidal activity and phytotoxicity of certain seed and soil fungicides potentially useful for control of cotton seedling diseases. Plant Disease Reporter 55(12):1111-1115.
- Thorn, G.D. (19723) Uptake and metabolism of chloroneb by Phaseolus vulgaris. Pesticide Biochemistry and Physiology 3(2): 137-140.
- Thapliyal, P.N.; Sinclair, J.B. (1970) Uptake of three systemic fungicides by germinating soybean seed. Phytopathology 60(9):1373-1375.
- Thapliyal, P.N.; Sinclair, J.B. (1971) Translocation of benomyl, carboxin, and chloroneb in soybean seedlings. Phytopathology 61(10):1301-1302.
- Burchfield, H.P.; Storrs, E.E. (1977) Residue analysis. Pages 463-505,~In~Antifungal Compounds: Vol. 1. Edited by M.R. Siegel and H.D. Sisler. New York: Marcel Dekker.
- Kirk, B.T.; Sinclair, J.B.; Lambremont, E.N. (1969) Translocation of 14C-labeled chloroneb and DMOC in cotton seedlings. Phytopathology (59):1473-1476.
- Wiersma, G.B.; Tai, H.; Sand, P.F. (1972) Pesticide residue levels in soils, FY 1969--National Soils Monitoring Program. Pesticides Monitoring Journal 6(3):194-228.
- Andersen, K.J.; Leighty, E.G.; Takahashi, M.T. (1972) Evaluation of herbicides for possible mutagenic properties. Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry 20(3):649-656.
- Wilbur-Ellis Co. (1987) Submission of Toxicity Data for Apron- Chloroneb Flowable To Support the Amended Label Change in Signal Word, Precautionary Statements, and Statement of Practical Treatment. Transmittal of 3 studies.
- 40282101 Deenihan, M. (1987) Primary Eye Irritation: Apron-Chloroneb Flow- able: NVP Report No. X7E045G. Unpublished study prepared by Northview Pacific Labs., Inc. 12 p.
- 40282102 Deenihan, M. (1987) Acute Inhalation Toxicity: Apron-Chloroneb Flowable: [Final Report]: NVP Report No. U7B002G. Unpublished study prepared by Northview Pacific Laboratories, Inc. 16 p.
- 40282103 Deenihan, M. (1987) Skin Sensitization: Apron-Chloroneb Flowable: NVP Report No. X7B016G. Unpublished study prepared by Northview Pacific Laboratories, Inc. 14 p.
- 40711300 Kincaid Enterprisees, Inc. (1988) Submission of Data To Support the Application for Registration of Terraneb SP Turf Fungicide: Toxicology Data. Transmittal of 2 studies.

- 40711301 Trutter, J. (1988) Acute and Subacute Pilot Oral Toxicity Study in Rabbits with Chloroneb (Technical Grade): HLA Study No. 2298-102. Unpublished study prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc. 38 p.
- 40711302 Trutter, J. (1988) Rabbit Teratology Study with Chloroneb (Technic- al Grade): HLA Study No. 2298-103. Unpublished study prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc. 170 p.
- 41126800 Platte Chemical Co. (1989) Submission of Toxicity Data in Support of Chloroneb Flowable Registration Standard. Transmittal of 1 study.
- 41126801 Biesemeier, J. (1988) Acute Inhalation Limit Test of Chloroneb Flowable Seed Treator in Sprague-Dawley Rats: FDRL Study No. 88.3505.001. Unpublished study prepared by Food and Drug Re- search Laboratories. 63 p.
- 41751600 The O.M. Scott & Sons Co. (1991) Submission of Product Chemistry and Toxicity Data to Support The Application for Registration of Fungicide IX; containing Chloroneb and Thiophanate-methyl as the Active Ingredients. Transmittal of 6 Studies.
- 41751601 Evans, W. (1990) Product Specific Chemistry Reqirements for Proturf Fungicide IX: Lab Project Number: SS-002. Unpublished study prepared by The O. M. Scott and Sons Co. 11 p.
- 41751602 Glaza, S. (1989) Acute Oral Toxicity Study of S-2621 in Rats: Lab Project Number: HLA 90802277. Unpublished study prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc. 23 p.
- Glaza, S. (1989) Acute Dermal Toxicity Study of S-2621 in Rabbits: Lab Project Number: HLA 90802278. Unpublished study prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc. 27 p.
- 41751604 Glaza, S. (1989) Primary Eye Irritation Study of S-2621 in Rabbits: Lab Project Number: HLA 90802280. Unpublished study prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc. 26 p.
- 41751605 Glaza, S. (1989) Primary Dermal Irritation Study of S-2621 in Rabb- its: Lab Project Number: HLA 90802279. Unpublished study prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc. 22 p.
- 41751606 Glaza, S. (1989) Dermal Sensitization Study of S-2621 in Guinea Pigs-Closed Patch Technique: Lab Project Number: HLA 90802281. Unpublished study prepared by Hazleton Laboratories America, Inc 30 p.
- 42482400 Kincaid Enterprises (1992) Submission of toxicology study to support Chloroneb registration standard. Transmittal of 1 study
- 42482401 Kincaid Enterprises. (1992) Embryo-fetal Toxicity and Teratogenicity Study of Chloroneb in the Rat: Supplement to MRID 131472: Lab Project Number: 104-004. Unpublished study prepared by Argus Research Labs. 79 p.
- 42484800 Scotts Co. (1992) Submission of toxicity data to support registration of S-2621. Transmittal of 1 study.

- Hershman, R. (1992) Acute Inhalation Toxicity, Single Level, 4-Hour Exposure: Rats: Lab Project Number: 92-7486A. Unpublished study prepared by Biosearch Inc. 26 p.
- 43146600 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Submittal of Environmental Fate and Product Chemistry Data in Response to Data Call In of Chloroneb. Transmittal of 3 studies.
- 43146601 Spare, W. (1994) Adsorption/Desorption of (carbon 14)-Chloroneb: Lab Project Number: 2523. Unpublished study prepared by Agrisearch Inc. 138 p.
- 43146602 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Product Identity and Composition of Technical Chloroneb. Unpublished study. 42 p.
- 43146603 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Analytical Determination of Technical Chloronob. Unpublished study. 6 p.
- 43156800 Kincaid Enterprises. (1994) Submittal of Toxicity Data in Support of Registration Standard of Chloroneb. Transmittal of 1 study.
- 43156801 Targia, M. (1994) MRD-93-572--(Chloroneb)--Acute Toxicity Test with Bluegill Sunfish (Lepomis macrochirus): 24 Hour-Renewal: Lab Project Number: 157240. Unpublished study prepared by Exxon Biomedical Sciences, Inc. 61 p.
- 43301100 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Submittal of Mutagenicity Data and Product Chemistry Data in Support of Registration Standard for Chloroneb. Transmittal of 6 studies.
- 43301101 Safepharm Laboratories Limited (1994) Chloroneb Technical: OECD 476: Mutation of L5178Y Mouse Lymphoma Cells at the Thymidine Kinase TK +/- Locus, Fluctuation Assay: Lab Project Number: 570/1. Unpublished study. 36 p.
- 43301102 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Bulk Density of Technical Chloroneb. Unpublished study. 4 p.
- 43301103 Roulstone, P.; Hogg, A.; Mullee, D. et al. (1994) Determination of Solvent Solubility: Chloroneb Technical (Batch No. E29323): Lab Project Number: 570/4 (R2). Unpublished study prepared by Safepharm Laboratories Limited. 31 p.
- 43301104 Hogg, A.; Mullee, D.; Bartlett (1994) Determination of Dissociation Constant: Chloroneb Technical (Batch No. E29323): Lab Project Number: 570/5 (R2). Unpublished study prepared by Safepharm Laboratories Limited. 10 p.
- 43301105 Hogg, A.; Mullee, D.; Bartlett (1994) Determination of Partition Coefficient: Chloroneb Technical (Batch No. E29323): Lab Project Number: 570/6 (R2). Unpublished study prepared by Safepharm Laboratories Limited. 15 p.
- 43301106 Mullee, D.; Bartlett (1994) Determination of Photostability: Chloroneb Technical (Batch No. E29323): Lab Project Number: 570/2 (R2). Unpublished study prepared by Safepharm Laboratories Limited. 17 p.
- 43352400 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Submission of product chemistry data in support of registration standard for Chloroneb. Transmittal of 2 studies.
- 43352401 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Preliminary Analysis of Product Samples: Chloroneb.

- Unpublished study. 8 p.
- 43352402 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Certification of Ingredient Limits: Chloroneb. Unpublished study. 4 p.
- 43512700 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1995) Submission of Residue Data in Support of Chloroneb Registration Standard. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- 43512701 Middleton, M. (1995) Magnitude of the Residue of (carbon 14)- Chloroneb in Cotton and Soybean: Lab Project Number: R319401: R9401: 843-3. Unpublished study prepared by Research for Hire and PTRL-East, Inc. 99 p.
- 43527100 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1995) Submission of supplemental toxicology data in support of registration standard for chloroneb. Transmittal of 1 study.
- Kincaid, B. (1995) Chloroneb Technical: MRD-93-572: Acute Fish Toxicity Bluegill Sunfish: Supplemental: Purity of Test Material: Lab Project Number: E/29323: CHLORONEB/TECHNICAL. Unpublished study prepared by Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. 9 p.
- 43553700 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1995) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the Chloroneb Registration Standard. Transmittal of 4 Studies.
- 43553701 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Technical Chloroneb Color. Unpublished study. 4 p.
- 43553702 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Technical Chloroneb Physical State. Unpublished study. 4 p.
- 43553703 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Technical Chloroneb Odor. Unpublished study. 4 p.
- 43553704 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1994) Technical Chloroneb: Melting Point. Unpublished study. 4 p.
- 43593500 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1995) Submission of Environmental Fate Data in Support of Chloroneb Registration Standard. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- 43593501 Spare, W. (1995) Aqueous Photolysis of (carbon 14)-Chloroneb: Lab Project Number: 2524: 803: 1580. Unpublished study prepared by Agrisearch Inc. 169 p.
- 43670900 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1995) Submission of Environmental Fate Data in Support of Chloroneb Registration Standard. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- 43670901 Spare, W. (1995) Aerobic Soil Metabolism of (carbon 14)-Chloroneb: Lab Project Number: 2525: 93-088. Unpublished study prepared by Agrisearch, Inc. 181 p.
- 44372000 Wilbur-Ellis Co. (1997) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the Reregistration of the Metalaxyl Containing Products Nu-Flow AD, Apron Flowable, and Apron TL. Transmittal of 2 Studies.
- 44372002 Slatterly, T. (1997) Physical and Chemical Properties: Nu-Flow Ad. Unpublished study prepared by Wilbur-Ellis Co. 6 p.
- 44643300 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1998) Submission of Residue Chemistry Data in Support of the

- Reregistration of Chloroneb. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- 44643301 Robinson, R. (1998) Magnitude of the Residue of (carbon-14)-Chloroneb in Cotton: Lab Project Number: XBL 96161: RPT00414: R369701. Unpublished study prepared by XenoBiotic Laboratories, Inc. 194 p. {OPPTD 860.1300}
- 44916800 Kincaid Enterprises, Inc. (1999) Submission of Residue Data in Support of the Registration of Demosan 65W. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- 44916801 Novak, R. (1999) Magnitude of the Residue of (carbon-14)-Chloroneb in Sunflower and Safflower: Lab Project Number: RFH84025: F99-7000. Unpublished study prepared by NPC, Incorporated; Research for Hire. 34 p. {OPPTS 860.1300}
- 44973200 The Andersons, Inc. (1999) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the Application for Registration of The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide. Transmittal of 6 Studies.
- Walters, D. (1999) The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide Product Identity and Composition: Lab Project Number: AND992100. Unpublished study prepared by The Andersons 4 p. {OPPTS 830.1550}
- Walters, D. (1999) The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide Description of Materials Used to Produce the Product: Lab Project Number: AND992200. Unpublished study prepared by The Andersons. 3 p {OPPTS 830.1600}
- Walters, D. (1999) The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide Description of Formulation Process: Lab Project Number: AND992300. Unpublished study prepared by The Andersons. 4 p {OPPTS 830.1650}
- Walters, D. (1999) The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide Certified Limits: Lab Project Number: AND992500. Unpublished study prepared by The Andersons. 4 p. {OPPTS 830.1750}
- 44973205 Walters, D. (1999) The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide Physical State: Lab Project Number: AND992600. Unpublished study prepared by The Andersons. 4 p. {OPPTS 830.6303}
- 44973206 Walters, D. (1999) The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide Density/Relative Density/Bulk Density: Lab Project Number: AND92700. Unpublished study prepared by The Andersons. 4 p. {OPPTS 830.7300}
- Wilfarm LLC (2000) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the Registration of Delta-Coat AD. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- Sinning, D. (2000) Physical and Chemical Characteristics of Delta Coat AD: Physical State, Oxidation/Reduction, Flammability, Explodability, Corrosion Characteristics, pH, Viscosity and Relative Density: Lab Project Number: 2160-03. Unpublished study prepared by Case Consulting Labs., Inc. 7 p. {OPPTS 830.6303, 830.6314, 830.6315, 830.6316, 830.7000, 830.7100, 830.7300}
- 45062800 The Andersons (2000) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the

- Application for Registration of 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- Walters, D. (1999) The Andersons 7.5% Chloroneb Turf Fungicide Discussion of Formation of Impurities: Lab Project Number: AND992800. Unpublished study prepared by The Andersons. 4 p. {OPPTS 830.1670}
- Wilbur-Ellis Company (2000) Submission of Residue Data in Support of the Registration of Nu-Flow ND. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- Willard, T. (2000) Magnitude of TCMTB Related Residues in Soybean Following Applications of (14C) TCMTB to Soybean Seed: Lab Project Number: AA990750: 4-99-2. Unpublished study prepared by American Agricultural Services, Inc. and Southern Testing & Research Laboratories, Inc. 118 p. {860.1500}
- 45717800 Agriliance, LLC (2002) Submission of Toxicity Data in Support of the Application for Registration of Delta-Coat II. Transmittal of 6 Studies.
- 45717801 Moore, G. (2002) Acute Oral Toxicity Study in Rats--Limit Test: Delta Coat II: Lab Project Number: 11850: P320. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 15 p. {OPPTS 870.1100}
- 45717802 Moore, G. (2002) Acute Dermal Toxicity Study in Rats--Limit Test: Delta Coat II: Lab Project Number: 11851: P322. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 15 p. {OPPTS 870.1200}
- 45717803 Moore, G. (2002) Acute Inhalation Toxicity Study in Rats--Limit Test: Delta Coat II: Lab Project Number: 11852: P330. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 22 p. {OPPTS 870.1300}
- 45717804 Moore, G. (2002) Primary Eye Irritation Study in Rabbits: Delta Coat II: Lab Project Number: 11853: P324. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 15 p. {OPPTS 870.2400}
- 45717805 Moore, G. (2002) Primary Skin Irritation Study in Rabbits: Delta Coat II: Lab Project Number: 11854: P326. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 16 p. {OPPTS 870.2500}
- 45717806 Moore, G. (2002) Dermal Sensitization Study in Guinea Pigs (Buehler Method): Delta Coat II: Lab Project Number: 11855: P328. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 31 p. {OPPTS 870.2600}
- 45755300 Agriliance, LLC (2002) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the Application for Registration of Delta-Coat II. Transmittal of 1 Study.
- Anderson, T. (2002) Group A Product Chemistry: Product Identity, Composition and Analysis: Delta-Coat II: Lab Project Number: ASM-316-R. Unpublished study prepared by Agriliance, LLC. 19 p. {OPPTS 830.1550, 830.1600, 830.1620, 830.1650, 830.1670, 830.1700, 830.1750, 830.1800}
- 45767700 Agriliance, LLC (2002) Submission of Toxicity Data in Support of the Application for Registration of Delta-Coat II. Transmittal of 1 Study

45767701	Moore, G. (2002) Dermal Sensitization Study in Guinea Pigs (Buehler Method): Delta Coat II: Lab Project Number: 11855: P328. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 32 p. {OPPTS 870.2600}
45849000	Agriliance (2003) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the Application for Registration of Delta-Coat II. Transmittal of 1 Study.
45849001	Thornton, R. (2002) Group A Product Chemistry: Enforcement Analytical Method. Unpublished study prepared by Agriliance, LLC. 6 p. {OPPTS 830.1800}
46167500	Agriliance, Inc. (2004) Submission of Product Chemistry Data in Support of the Registration of Delta Coat II. Transmittal of 1 Study.
46167501	Wo, C. (2003) Storage Stability and Corrosion Characteristics: Delta-Coat II. Project Number: 12771, P800. Unpublished study prepared by Product Safety Labs. 33 p.

Citations Not Identified by a MRID Number

Kharbanda, P.D. (1971) Systemicity of C14-labeled chloroneb in soybean tissues. Unpublished Ph.D Dissertation, University of Illinois, 46 pp.

Burns, Lawrence, 1997. Expousre Analysis Modeling System (EXAMS III); User's Guide for Version 2.97. Ecosystem Research Division, National Exposure Research Laboratory, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Athens, Georgia.

Carsel, R.F., J.C. Imhoff, P.R. Humel, J. M. Cheplick, and A.S. Donigian, Jr. 1997. PRZM-3, A Model for Predicting Pesticide and Nitrogen Fate in the Crop Root and Unsaturated Zones: User's Manual for Release 3.0 National Exposure Research Laboratory, Office of Research and Development, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Athens, GA.

Environmental Fate and Effects Division. 2001. GENEEC (GEN)eric (E)stimated (E)nvironmental (C)oncenttration Model. Version 2.0 User's Manual. http://www.epa.gov/oppefed1/models/water/first users manual.htm

Environmental Fate and Effects Division. 2002. Guidance for Selecting Input Parameters in Modeling the Environmental Fate and Transport of Pesticides, Version II. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Washington, D.C.

http://www.epa.govoppefed1/models water/input guidance2 28 02.htm/

Flecher, J.S., Nellessen, and T.G. Pfleeger. 1994. Literature review and evaluation of the EPA food-chanin (Kenaga) nomogram, and instrument for estimating pesticide residues on plants. Environ. Tox. Chem. 13:1383-1391.

Fungicide Resistance Action Committee. 2002. FRAC fungicide list, sorted by mode of action. http://www.frac.into/publications/frac list02.html

Hoerger, F., and E. E. Kenaga. 1972. Pesticide residues on plants: Correlation of representative data as a basis for estimation of their magnitude in the environment. In F. Coulston and F. Korte, eds., Environmental Quality and Safety: Chemistry, Toxicology, and Technology, Georg Thieme Publ, Stuttgart, West Germany, pp. 9-28.

Mineau, P, B. T. Collins, and A. Bril, 1996. On the use of scaling factors to improve interspecies extrapolaltion of acute toxicity in birds. Regulatory Toxicology and Pharmacology. 24:24-29.

Nagy, K. A. 1987. Field metabolic rate and food requirement scaling in mammals and birds. Ecological Monographs 57:111-128.

Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances, 2004a; Overview of the Ecological Risk Assessment Process in the Office of Pesticide Programs. Office of Pesticide Programs, Washington, DC

Office of Pesticide Programs. 2004. Interim Guidance of the Evaluation Criteria for Ecological Toxicity Data in the Open Literature: PHASES I and II. Office of Pesticide Programs, Washington, DC

Office of Pesticide Programs. 2000. Part A. Guidance for Use of the Index Reservoir in Drinking Water Assessments.

http://www.epa.gov/oppfead1/trac/science/reservoir.pdf

Pitard, Francis, 1991. Sampling Methodologies for Monitoring the Environment: Theory and Practice. A Short Course Sponsored by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Pierre Gy and Francis Pitard Sampling Consultants.

The Pesticide Management Education Program at Cornell University. 2001. http://pmep.cce.cornell.edu/profiles/fung-nemat/aceticacid-etridiazole/chloroneb/fung-prof-chloroneb.html. Last visted on 12/09/04.

Risk Assessment Forum. 1998. Guidelines for Ecological Risk Assessment. United States Environmental Protection Agency, Washington, DC. EPA 630/R-95/002F April 1998.

Seaber, Paul R., F. Paul Kapinos, and George L. Knapp. 1987. Hydrologic Unit Maps. U.S. Geological Survey Water-Supply Paper 2294. United States Government Printing Office. Washington, DC.

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 2004. Overview of Ecological Risk Assessment Process in the Office of Pesticide Programs, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances, Office of Pesticide Programs, Washington, DC. http://www.epa.gov/espp/consultation/ecorisk-overview.pdf

Urban D.J. and N.J. Cook. 1986. Hazard Evaluation Division Standard Evaluation Procedure Ecological Risk Assessment. EPA 540/9-85-001. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of Pesticide Programs, Washington, DC.

USEPA 1995. Great Lakes Water Quality Technical Support Documents for Wildlife Criteria. Washington DC Office of Water. Document Number EPA-820-B095-009.

Willis, Guy H., an Leslie. L. McDowell, 1987. Pesticide Persistence on Foliage. In Reviews of Environmental Contamination and Toxicology. 100:23-73.

Appendix E. GENERIC DATA CALL-IN

Note that a complete Data Call-In (DCI), with all pertinent instructions, will be sent to registrants under separate cover.

Appendix F. PRODUCT SPECIFIC DATA CALL-IN

Note that a complete Data Call-In (DCI), with all pertinent instructions, will be sent to registrants under separate cover.

Appendix G: EPA'S BATCHING OF CHLORONEB PRODUCTS FOR MEETING ACUTE TOXICITY DATA REQUIREMENTS FOR REREGISTRATION

In an effort to reduce the time, resources and number of animals needed to fulfill the acute toxicity data requirements for reregistration of products containing CHLORONEB as the active ingredient, the Agency has batched products which can be considered similar for purposes of acute toxicity. Factors considered in the sorting process include each product's active and inert ingredients (identity, percent composition and biological activity), type of formulation (e.g., emulsifiable concentrate, aerosol, wettable powder, granular, etc.), and labeling (e.g., signal word, use classification, precautionary labeling, etc.). Note that the Agency is not describing batched products as "substantially similar" since some products within a batch may not be considered chemically similar or have identical use patterns.

Using available information, batching has been accomplished by the process described in the preceding paragraph. Notwith-standing the batching process, the Agency reserves the right to require, at any time, acute toxicity data for an individual product should the need arise.

Registrants of products within a batch may choose to cooperatively generate, submit or cite a single battery of six acute toxicological studies to represent all the products within that batch. It is the registrants' option to participate in the process with all other registrants, only some of the other registrants, or only their own products within a batch, or to generate all the required acute toxicological studies for each of their own products. If a registrant chooses to generate the data for a batch, he/she must use one of the products within the batch as the test material. If a registrant chooses to rely upon previously submitted acute toxicity data, he/she may do so provided that the data base is complete and valid by today's standards (see acceptance criteria attached), the formulation tested is considered by EPA to be similar for acute toxicity, and the formulation has not been significantly altered since submission and acceptance of the acute toxicity data. Regardless of whether new data is generated or existing data is referenced, registrants must clearly identify the test material by EPA Registration Number. If more than one confidential statement of formula (CSF) exists for a product, the registrant must indicate the formulation actually tested by identifying the corresponding CSF.

In deciding how to meet the product specific data requirements, registrants must follow the directions given in the Data Call-In Notice and its attachments appended to the RED. The DCI Notice contains two response forms which are to be completed and submitted to the Agency within 90 days of receipt. The first form, "Data Call-In Response," asks whether the registrant will meet the data requirements for each product. The second form, "Requirements Status and Registrant's Response," lists the product specific data required for each product, including the standard six acute toxicity tests. A registrant who wishes to participate in a batch must decide whether he/she will provide the data or depend on someone else to do so. If a registrant supplies the data to support a batch of products, he/she must select one of the following options: Developing Data (Option 1), Submitting an Existing Study (Option 4), Upgrading an Existing Study (Option 5) or Citing an Existing Study (Option 2), Offers to Cost Share (Option 3) or Citing an Existing Study (Option 6). If a registrant does not want to

participate in a batch, the choices are Options 1, 4, 5 or 6. However, a registrant should know that choosing not to participate in a batch does not preclude other registrants in the batch from citing his/her studies and offering to cost share (Option 3) those studies.

Twelve products were found which contain Chloroneb as the active ingredient. These products have been placed two batches and a no batch group in accordance with the active and inert ingredients and type of formulation.

Batching Instructions:

No Batch: Each product in this Batch should generate their own data.

NOTE: The technical acute toxicity values included in this document are for informational purposes only. The data supporting these values may or may not meet the current acceptance criteria.

Batch 1	EPA Reg. No.	Percent Active Ingredient
	73782-2	65.0
	73782-3	65.0

Batch 2	EPA Reg. No.	Percent Active Ingredient
	1381-166	Chloroneb: 30.0 Metalaxyl: 3.5
	51036-258	Chloroneb: 30.0 Metalaxyl: 3.5

No Batch	EPA Reg. No.	Percent Active Ingredient
	1381-183	Chloroneb: 30.00 Mefenoxam: 2.01
	2217-692	65.00
	2935-413	Chloroneb: 23.50 TCMTB: 9.00
	2935-414	30.00
	9198-182	6.25
	9198-204	Chloroneb: 3.26 Thiophanate-methyl: 1.63

73782-1	88.00
73782-4	30.00

Appendix H. List of Registrants Sent this Data Call-In Notice

Appendix I. LIST OF AVAILABLE RELATED DOCUMENTS AND ELECTRONICALLY AVAILABLE FORMS

Pesticide Registration Forms are available at the following EPA internet site:

http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/.

Pesticide Registration Forms (These forms are in PDF format and require the Acrobat reader)

Instructions

- 1. Print out and complete the forms. (Note: Form numbers that are bolded can be filled out on your computer then printed.)
- 2. The completed form(s) should be submitted in hardcopy in accord with the existing policy.
- 3. Mail the forms, along with any additional documents necessary to comply with EPA regulations covering your request, to the address below for the Document Processing Desk.

DO NOT fax or e-mail any form containing 'Confidential Business Information' or 'Sensitive Information.'

If you have any problems accessing these forms, please contact Nicole Williams at (703) 308-5551 or by e-mail at williams.nicole@epamail.epa.gov.

The following Agency Pesticide Registration Forms are currently available via the internet:

at the following locations:

ut the following focutions:		
8570-1	Application for Pesticide Registration/Amendment	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-1.pd f.
8570-4	Confidential Statement of Formula	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-4.pd <u>f.</u>
8570-5	Notice of Supplemental Registration of Distribution of a Registered Pesticide Product	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-5.pd <u>f.</u>
8570-1 7	Application for an Experimental Use Permit	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-17.pdf.
8570-2 5	Application for/Notification of State Registration of a Pesticide To Meet a Special Local Need	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-25.pdf.
8570-2 7	Formulator's Exemption Statement	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-27.pdf.

8570-2 8	Certification of Compliance with Data Gap Procedures	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-28.pdf.
8570-3 0	Pesticide Registration Maintenance Fee Filing	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-30.p df.
8570-3 2	Certification of Attempt to Enter into an Agreement with other Registrants for Development of Data	http://www.epa.gov/opprd001/forms/8570-32.p df.
8570-3 4	Certification with Respect to Citations of Data (in PR Notice 98-5)	http://www.epa.gov/opppmsd1/PR Notices/pr9 8-5.pdf.
8570-3 5	Data Matrix (in PR Notice 98-5)	http://www.epa.gov/opppmsd1/PR_Notices/pr9 8-5.pdf.
8570-3 6	Summary of the Physical/Chemical Properties (in PR Notice 98-1)	http://www.epa.gov/opppmsd1/PR Notices/pr9 8-1.pdf.
8570-3 7	Self-Certification Statement for the Physical/Chemical Properties (in PR Notice 98-1)	http://www.epa.gov/opppmsd1/PR Notices/pr9 8-1.pdf.

Pesticide Registration Kit

www.epa.gov/pesticides/registrationkit/.

Dear Registrant:

For your convenience, we have assembled an online registration kit which contains the following pertinent forms and information needed to register a pesticide product with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Office of Pesticide Programs (OPP):

- 1. The Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) and the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (FFDCA) as Amended by the Food Quality Protection Act (FQPA) of 1996.
- 2. Pesticide Registration (PR) Notices
 - a. 83-3 Label Improvement Program--Storage and Disposal Statements
 - b. 84-1 Clarification of Label Improvement Program
 - c. 86-5 Standard Format for Data Submitted under FIFRA
 - d. 87-1 Label Improvement Program for Pesticides Applied through Irrigation Systems (Chemigation)
 - e. 87-6 Inert Ingredients in Pesticide Products Policy Statement
 - f. 90-1 Inert Ingredients in Pesticide Products; Revised Policy Statement
 - g. 95-2 Notifications, Non-notifications, and Minor Formulation Amendments
 - h. 98-1 Self Certification of Product Chemistry Data with Attachments (This document is in PDF format and requires the Acrobat reader.)

Other PR Notices can be found at http://www.epa.gov/opppmsd1/PR Notices.

- 3. Pesticide Product Registration Application Forms (These forms are in PDF format and will require the Acrobat reader.)
 - a. EPA Form No. 8570-1, Application for Pesticide Registration/Amendment
 - b. EPA Form No. 8570-4, Confidential Statement of Formula
 - c. EPA Form No. 8570-27, Formulator's Exemption Statement
 - d. EPA Form No. 8570-34, Certification with Respect to Citations of Data
 - e. EPA Form No. 8570-35. Data Matrix
- 4. General Pesticide Information (Some of these forms are in PDF format and will require the Acrobat reader.)
 - a. Registration Division Personnel Contact List
 - b. Biopesticides and Pollution Prevention Division (BPPD) Contacts
 - c. Antimicrobials Division Organizational Structure/Contact List
 - d. 53 F.R. 15952, Pesticide Registration Procedures; Pesticide Data Requirements (PDF format)
 - e. 40 CFR Part 156, Labeling Requirements for Pesticides and Devices (PDF format)
 - f.. 40 CFR Part 158, Data Requirements for Registration (PDF format)
 - g.. 50 F.R. 48833, Disclosure of Reviews of Pesticide Data (November 27, 1985)

Before submitting your application for registration, you may wish to consult some additional sources of information. These include:

- 1. The Office of Pesticide Programs' Web Site
- 2. The booklet "General Information on Applying for Registration of Pesticides in the United States", PB92-221811, available through the National Technical Information Service (NTIS) at the following address:

National Technical Information Service (NTIS) 5285 Port Royal Road Springfield, VA 22161

The telephone number for NTIS is (703) 605-6000. Please note that EPA is currently in the process of updating this booklet to reflect the changes in the registration program resulting from the passage of the FQPA and the reorganization of the Office of Pesticide Programs. We anticipate that this publication will become available during the Fall of 1998.

3. The National Pesticide Information Retrieval System (NPIRS) of Purdue University's Center for Environmental and Regulatory Information Systems. This service does charge a fee for subscriptions and custom searches. You can contact NPIRS by telephone at (765) 494-6614 or through their Web site.

4. The National Pesticide Telecommunications Network (NPTN) can provide information on active ingredients, uses, toxicology, and chemistry of pesticides. You can contact NPTN by telephone at (800) 858-7378 or through their Web site: ace.orst.edu/info/nptn.

The Agency will return a notice of receipt of an application for registration or amended registration, experimental use permit, or amendment to a petition if the applicant or petitioner encloses with his submission a stamped, self-addressed postcard. The postcard must contain the following entries to be completed by OPP:

Date of receipt EPA identifying number Product Manager assignment

Other identifying information may be included by the applicant to link the acknowledgment of receipt to the specific application submitted. EPA will stamp the date of receipt and provide the EPA identifying File Symbol or petition number for the new submission. The identifying number should be used whenever you contact the Agency concerning an application for registration, experimental use permit, or tolerance petition.

To assist us in ensuring that all data you have submitted for the chemical are properly coded and assigned to your company, please include a list of all synonyms, common and trade names, company experimental codes, and other names which identify the chemical (including "blind" codes used when a sample was submitted for testing by commercial or academic facilities). Please provide a CAS number if one has been assigned.

Documents Associated with this RED

The following documents are part of the Administrative Record for this RED document and may be included in the EPA's Office of Pesticide Programs Public Docket. Copies of these documents are not available electronically, but may be obtained by contacting the person listed on the respective Chemical Status Sheet.

- 1. Health and Environmental Effects Science Chapters.
- 2. Detailed Label Usage Information System (LUIS) Report.